
 

 

Agenda 

 
Committee Administrator:     Democratic Services Officer  (01609 767015) 

 
Friday, 28 August 2020 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
Notice of Meeting 
 
Meeting Cabinet 

 
Date Tuesday, 8 September 2020 

 
Time 9.30 am 

 
Venue Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Stone Cross, Rotary Way, 

Northallerton, DL6 2UU 
 

This meeting is also available to join via Teams (please see joining 
instructions below) 

Yours sincerely 
 

J. Ives. 

 
Dr Justin Ives 
Chief Executive 
 
To: Councillors Councillors 

M S Robson (Chairman) 
P R Wilkinson (Vice-Chairman) 
Mrs B S Fortune 
 

Mrs I Sanderson 
S Watson 
D A Webster 
 

Other Members of the Council for information  
 
Note 
 
Members of the press and public are welcome to attend meetings of Cabinet. Due to current social 
distancing restrictions, measures have been implemented which limit the number of attendees able to be 
physically present in the meeting at any one time. Temporary arrangements are in place for members of 
the public to register in advance if they wish to attend a meeting. If you wish to attend the meeting, you are 
requested to register your intent no later than 24 hours before the meeting takes place. Spaces available 
are allocated on a first come first served basis. If you have not registered in advance access to the meeting 
cannot be guaranteed. Upon arrival members of the press and public will be asked to sign at reception and 
further instructions will be provided. Please note that the meeting is also available to be viewed virtually via 
Teams without the need to physically attend the meeting. Please click on the link on the website or dial 

020 3855 5195 followed by the Conference ID: 305 184 469#  
Please contact Louise Hancock, Democratic Services Officer, Tel: 01609 767015 or email 
louise.hancock@hambleton.gov.uk to register your attendance. 

Public Document Pack

mailto:louise.hancock@hambleton.gov.uk


Agenda 
 
  Page No 

 
1.  Minutes 

 
 

 To confirm the decisions of the meeting held on 28 July 2020 (CA.65 - 
CA.69), previously circulated. 
 

 

2.  Apologies for Absence  
 

 

Resources Management 
   

3.  2020/21 Q1 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Report 
 

1 - 28 

 The purpose of this report is to provide the Quarter 1 update at 30 June 
2020 on the progress of the capital programme 2020/21 and the 
treasury management position.  A full schedule of the capital 
programme 2020/21 is attached at Annex A of the report, together with 
the relevant update on progress of each scheme. 
  
In accepting the recommendations, Cabinet will approve and 
recommend to Council the net increase of £663,099 in the capital 
programme to £52,233,766 and all expenditure movements as detailed 
in Annex B and also in the capital programme attached at Annex A of 
the report; the increase of capital expenditure of £1,177,000 funded as 
follows: £710,158 is from external grants/contributions, £171,842 from 
borrowing, £150,000 from the One Off fund, £84,000 from the Economic 
Development Fund and £61,000 is funded from capital receipts; the 
funding allocation to the capital programme as detailed in paragraph 3.1 
and 3.2 of the report; the treasury management and prudential 
indicators at Annex E of the report; and to note the position of the 
Council’s third party companies at Annex F of the report. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

4.  2020/21 Q1 Revenue Monitoring Report 
 

29 - 40 

 The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the revenue 
budget position of the Council and the reserve funds at the end of June 
2020. 
  
In accepting the recommendations, Cabinet will approve and 
recommend to Council that the budget remains at £9,269,670 as 
detailed in paragraph 3.2 of the report; the revised 2019/20 Revenue 
Outturn and position on the Council Tax Payers Reserve is a reduction 
of £150,539 to £1,086,421 detailed at paragraph 5.2 of the report; the 
total allocation of the Economic Development fund of £507,960, leaving 
£481,316 at paragraph 9.4 of the report; the allocation from the Council 
Tax Payers Reserve at paragraph 9.5 of the report of £600,000; the 
transfer of £125,000 from the One Off Fund to Make a Difference Fund 

 



at paragraph 9.6 of the report; the allocation from the One Off fund at 
paragraph 9.7 of the report of £506,740; and the expenditure of 
£350,000 to support the professional advice fees for the 
Vehicle/Company Structure at paragraph 9.8 of the report. 
 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

5.  CIL Funding Priorities 
 

41 - 60 

 The Council must identify how it intends to use Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) monies collected to deliver strategic 
infrastructure.  The purpose of this report is to consider the prioritisation 
of the schemes to be funded either entirely, or in part, through CIL.  This 
report identifies options and seeks approval to undertake the 
recommended approach.  CIL is a levy on development which the 
Council has collected, where the funds are used to provide 
infrastructure. 
  
In accepting the recommendations, Cabinet will approve and 
recommend to Council the Draft Infrastructure Funding Statement set 
out in Annex’s 2 and 3 of the report, to replace the Regulation 123 list; 
the recommended prioritisation of schemes for 2020/2021, in 
accordance with paragraph 1.16 of the report; that £2,069,666 of CIL 
funding be committed to the priority schemes, in accordance with 
paragraph 1.21 of the report; and that further CIL received up to the 31 
March 2021 be committed to the priority schemes in accord with the 
percentages set out in paragraph 1.21 of the report. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

6.  Council Plan 20120– 2024 
 

61 - 78 

 This report seeks approval for the revised Council Plan 2019-2023 
which demonstrates the Council’s vision, purpose and priorities updated 
for 2020 onwards. 
  
In accepting the recommendation, Cabinet will be asked to recommend 
the revised Council Plan 2019-2023 to Council. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

7.  Bedale Leisure Improvements 
 

79 - 82 

 Within the Council Plan, 2019-23, community leisure facility 
improvements at Bedale are identified as a key project.  This project is 
part of the Council’s strategy to invest in leisure facilities across the 
district.  This report seeks approval for delivery of a scheme of 
improvements at Bedale Leisure Centre. 
  
 
 

 



In accepting the recommendations, Cabinet will approve and 
recommend to Council the planned approach to investment 
at Bedale Leisure Centre for sports and physical activity improvements 
highlighted within the report; that £314,000 is allocated from the 
Community Investment Levy to fund the improvements, and flexibility to 
deliver the elements of the project within budget is delegated to the 
Director of Leisure and Communities as highlighted within section 4.0 of 
the report. 
 

 Relevant Ward(s): Bedale Ward 
 

 

8.  Commercial Investment Strategy 
 

83 - 86 

 It is proposed that the Commercial Investment Strategy is suspended at 
the current time due to the increase in Publics Works Loan Board 
interest rates on borrowing in October 2019 resulting in the income to be 
generated from commercial investments being marginal; consultation 
paper from HM Treasury on ‘Public Works Loan Board: future lending 
terms’ in March 2020 where it is clearly implies the Treasury will no 
longer allow local authorities to borrow money from the Public Works 
Loan Board to purchase commercial property if the aim is solely to 
generate an income stream and current Covid-19 environment where 
receipt of rental income is uncertain. 
 
In accepting the recommendations, Cabinet will approve and 
recommend to Council that the Commercial Investment strategy is 
suspended; and £30m commercial investment property portfolio is 
removed from the Capital programme and the Authorised Borrowing 
Limit and Prudential Indicators are revised at paragraph 4.1 of the 
report. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

9.  Exclusion of the Public and Press 
 

 

 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting 
during consideration of item 10 on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act. 
 

 

10.  Crematorium Development 
 

87 - 92 

 This report provides information for consideration regarding the 
Crematorium development. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

 



 Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 8 September 2020 
 
Subject: 2020/21 Q1 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management 

Report 
 
Portfolio Holder: Economic Development and Finance 
 Councillor P R Wilkinson  
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and Background     
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the Quarter 1 update at 30 

June 2020 on the progress of the capital programme 2020/21 and the treasury 
management position. A full schedule of the capital programme 2020/21 is attached 
at Annex A, together with the relevant update on progress of each scheme. 

 
1.2 Capital expenditure is intrinsically linked with treasury management as the way that 

the capital programme is funded, directly effects the treasury management 
arrangements of the Council. The majority of the Council’s capital expenditure is 
funded by grants, capital receipts, reserves and borrowing. The use of the Council’s 
funds affects the daily treasury management cash flow position, as well as the 
requirement to investment surplus funds. 

  
2.0 Capital Programme Summary:    
 
2.1 The 2020/21 capital programme was approved by Cabinet on 11 February 2020 at 

10,955,966.  At 2019/20 outturn, £40,614,701 capital expenditure was carried 
forward in to the new financial year revising the capital programme 2020/21 to 
£51,570,667. 

 
2.2 A breakdown of the movement in the revised capital programme in 2020/21 is as 

follows: 
 

Portfolio 
Original 
2020/21 

2019/20 
carried 
forward 

Revised 
2020/21 

  £ £ £ 

Leisure & Communities 217,000 1,388,369 1,605,369 

Environment 95,000 239,303 334,303 

Economy & Planning 438,000 3,645,253 4,083,253 

Finance & Commercial 108,830 348,726 457,556 

Economic Development Fund 484,436 159,022 643,458 

Corporate Schemes 9,612,700 34,834,028 44,446,728 

Total 10,955,966 40,614,701 51,570,667 

Table 1: Capital Programme 2020/21 
  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2.3 At this Quarter 1 monitoring, a net increase to the capital programme of £663,099 
results in a total revised capital programme of £52,233,766. 

 
2.4 The net increase of £663,099 to be approved in this report is detailed in Annex B 

and is made up of:- 
 

a) increase in expenditure of £466,842 supported from reserves and borrowing; 
 

b) decrease in expenditure of £490,149 due to funding no longer required;  
 

c) increase in expenditure of £710,158 funded externally; and 
 
d) decrease in expenditure of £23,752 due to scheme rolled forward to 2021/22. 

 
2.5 Table 2 below outlines the variances reported against each portfolio area. 
 

Table 2: Capital Programme Q1 2020/21 
 

2.6  To 30 June 2020 capital expenditure of £1,289,629 has been incurred or committed 
representing 5.8% of the revised Quarter 1 capital programme position of 
£22,233,766 when the Property fund of £30m is excluded. It is expected that the 
capital programme will come in on target at the end of the financial year.  

 
2.7 The proposed changes to the Capital Programme, which require approval by this 

Cabinet, are detailed for each of the four portfolio areas, the Economic 
Development Fund and Corporate Schemes at Annex B 

 
3.0 Funding the Capital Programme 
 
3.1  For 2020/21, at Quarter 1, the capital programme of £52,233,766 is being funded 

from £44,618,570 external borrowing, £4,550,291 external grants/contributions, 
£1,894,174 from Capital Receipts, 457,556 from the Computer Fund, £238,022 
from the Economic Development Fund, £211,000 from the Council Tax Payers 
Reserve, £150,000 from the One Off Fund, £84,701 from revenue and £29,452 
from the Repairs and Renewals Reserve. 

  Portfolio 
Current 

Approved 
Expenditure 

Revised 
Expenditure 

Q1 

Variance 
Increase/ 

(decrease) 

Request 
for 

additional 
funding 

Funding 
no longer 
required 

External 
Funding 

 
Schemes 
re-
profiled 
to future 
years  

 
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Leisure and 
Communities 

1,605,369 1,656,904 51,535 61,000 (713) 15,000 (23,752) 

Environment 334,303 334,303 - - - - - 

Economic and 
Planning 

4,083,253 4,778,411 695,158 - - 695,158 - 

Finance and 
Commercial 

457,556 457,556 - - - - - 

Economic 
Development Fund 

643,458 238,022 (405,436) 84,000 (489,436) - - 

Corporate 
Schemes 

44,446,728 44,768,570 321,842 321,842 - - - 

Total 51,570,667 52,233,766 663,099 466,842 (490,149) 710,158 (23,752) 

Page 2



 
3.2  The external grant funding has increased in Quarter 1 by £710,158. This is as a 

result of a contribution from the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) of £618,024 for 
the North Northallerton infrastructure scheme, additional grant allocation of £77,134 
for the Disable Facilities Grant scheme and £15,000 from the European Regional 
Development Fund (ERDF) for Northallerton Sports Village. 

 
3.3  The capital receipts estimated to be received during 2020/21 is £444,500 
 
3.4  Therefore at year end in accordance with accounting practice the capital 

programme will be financed using all available in year funding prior to using 
borrowing and the Council’s capital reserves.  At Quarter 1 it is estimated that 
£1,449,674 of reserve funding will be used. 

 
3.5  The overall funding position continues to be closely monitored to ensure the overall 

capital programme remains affordable and sustainable over the 10 year approved 
capital plan. 
 

3.6  It should be noted that the report reflects the capital programme position as if 
approval has been agreed by Cabinet. This is detailed in the recommendations 
below. 

 
4.0 Treasury Management Position 2020/21: 
 
4.1  The Treasury Management review at Quarter 1 2020/21 is attached at Annex C and 

provides Members with an update on the: 
 

(a) treasury management position 
(b) economy and interest rates 
(c) investment policy 
(d) investment performance 
(e) borrowing position 
(f) compliance with prudential and treasury indicators 

 
4.2  The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2020/21 which details 

the Council’s approach to treasury management was approved by this Council on 
25 February 2020.  

 
4.3  The investment position at Quarter 1, 30 June 2020 is higher than usual as large 

grants have been received from the Government in relation to COVID-19 and 
payments for the capital programme are scheduled for later in the year. The 
balance at the end of Quarter 1 was £16,250,000 with an average interest rate 
return of 0.30% for the year to date. This is all invested in short term commodities 
for liquidity purposes due to the numerous capital projects that are currently 
ongoing within the Council and the business grants that are being passed on. 
£11,000,000 is invested in Money Market Funds which has instant access and the 
remaining balance of £5,250,000 is placed in instant call accounts with Lloyds Bank 
and Handelsbanken.  The balance has been divided into these commodities so that 
the best yield is obtained whilst ensuring the money is available by the Council 
when required.  The current climate has seen investment interest rates fall and the 
Lloyds call account is currently at 0%, minimum balances are placed in this account 
however it is used for liquidity purposes. 

 

Page 3



4.4  The total borrowing by the Council with the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) is 
£27,700,000 taken in previous financial years over seven loans with varying 
maturity dates. There is no requirement for further borrowing at Quarter 1, this will 
be closely monitored in line with the Council’s capital programme and reported if the 
need arises. 

 
4.5  At Quarter 1 the Council had given a total of £35,000,000 of loans to a Local 

Housing Association. This has been made up of ten individual loans with varying 
maturity dates and fulfils the agreement taken out with the Housing Association. 

 
4.6  The interest received from the loans to the local Housing Association is not included 

in this section of the report because the loan is classed as capital expenditure under 
economic development to support local businesses. However the interest earned in 
the first quarter from the £35,000,000 loaned to the Local Housing association is 
£368,690, and is on target for the annual budget of £1,474,760. 

 
4.7 The Council has operated within the treasury and prudential indicators set out at 

Annex E. The approved limits were not breached during the Quarter 1 in 2020/21. 
 
4.8  Annex F, in line with good practice on openness and transparency, explains the 

Council’s relationship with its third party companies; it details the financial position 
of the Joint Venture Company. 

 
5.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
5.1  All schemes approved as part of the capital programme have been evaluated 

against key corporate priorities. Schemes are only undertaken and approved by 
Cabinet in accordance with the Council Plan and supporting project initiation 
documentation. 

 
5.2  Treasury Management supports all aspects of the Council’s priorities as the income 

earned on investments or increased costs on interest paid on borrowing contributes 
to the Council’s funding position which supports Council services. 

 
6.0 Risk Assessment: 
 
6.1  There are no risks associated with approving this report. However, the risks 

associated with not receiving regular monitoring reports are potentially more 
serious. 

  
7.0 Financial Implications: 
 
7.1 The financial implications are dealt with in the body of the report. 
 
8.0 Legal Implications: 
 
8.1 Treasury Management activities and the Capital programme conform to the Local 

Government Act 2003 and the Council has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code of Practice. 

 
  

Page 4



9.0  Equality/Diversity Issues: 
 
9.1  The capital programme seeks to address key equality issues that affect the Council 

and the public. The main scheme that specifically addressed equalities in the first 
quarter of 2020/21 is the disabled facilities grant scheme. 

 
10.0  Recommendations: 
 
10.1  That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council:- 
 

(1) the net increase of £663,099 in the capital programme to £52,233,766 and all 
expenditure movements as detailed in Annex B and also in the capital 
programme attached at Annex A of the report; 
 

(2) the increase of capital expenditure of £1,177,000 funded as follows: 
£710,158 is from external grants/contributions, £171,842 from borrowing, 
£150,000 from the One Off fund, £84,000 from the Economic Development 
Fund and £61,000 is funded from capital receipts;  

 
(3) the funding allocation to the capital programme as detailed in paragraph 3.1 

and 3.2 of the report; 
 
(4) the treasury management and prudential indicators at Annex E of the report; 

and 
 
(5) to note the position of the Council’s third party companies at Annex F of the 

report. 
 
 
Louise Branford-White 
Director of Finance and Commercial (S151 Officer) 
 
 
Background papers: Capital programme working papers Q1 
 Treasury management working papers Q1 
Author ref: SC 
Contact: Saskia Calton 
 Corporate Finance Manager 
 Direct Line No 01609 767226 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Capital Programme Schemes 2020/21 Annex A

Councillor / Officer
Project 

owner
Capital Scheme Budget 2020/21 2019/20 B/Fwd Total 2020/21 Qtr 1 Qtr 1 + 2020/21

Third Party 

Cont

Third Party Cont             

Qtr 1

Cost to the 

Council                                    

£

 Expenditure at 

30th June 2020 

Anticipated 

Expenditure Year 

End

Explanation

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £  £ £

Cllr Fortune          

Portfolio Holder for 

Leisure Leisure & Communities

CT NLC - Swimming Pool Heat Exchangers 1 & 2 20,000                     20,000 20,000 20,000                 20,000
Scheme is progressing and estimated to be completed by March 

2021.

CT NLC - Internal Painting 1,131                      1,131 1,131 1,131                   1,131                   1,131 Scheme completed.

DA NLC - Spinning Bikes 14,000                    14,000 14,000 14,000                 14,000 Scheme is under development and assessment ongoing

DA NLC - Pool Flume Improvements 12,935                    12,935 (713) 12,222 12,222                 12,222                 12,222 Scheme is completed and return to fund of £713

 DA NLC - Cold Water Storage Tank 20,000                     20,000                   20,000 20,000                 20,000
Scheme is progressing and expected to be completed by March 

2021.

 DA NLC - Staircases to Flume & Studio Repairs 16,000                     16,000                   16,000 16,000                 2,595                   16,000
Scheme is progressing and estimated to be completed in 

Quarter 3.

DA SLC - Underwater Detection System 58,979                    58,979                   58,979 58,979                 58,979
Scheme is due to be completed in Quarter 2 and fully operational 

in Quarter 3.

DA SLC - Changing Room Air Handling Unit 34,775                    34,775                   34,775 34,775                 34,775 Quotes have been received and the scheme is under evaluation.

DA SLC - Swimming Pool Heat Exchangers & Boiler Shunt Pump 19,000                     19,000                   19,000 19,000                 19,000
Scheme under development and estimated to be completed by 

March 2021.

DA SLC - Leisure Improvement scheme 67,119                    67,119                   67,119 67,119                 67,119
Scheme is in progress and estimated to be completed by March 

2021.

DA SLC - Upgrade of Sauna Area 15,000                     15,000                   15,000 15,000                 15,000 Scheme is under development and assessment ongoing

DA BLC - Gym Floor 6,000                      6,000                     6,000 6,000                   6,000
Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by 

March 2021.

DA BLC - Fitness Suite A/C Indoor Unit 13,000                     13,000                   13,000 13,000                 13,000
Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by 

March 2021.

DA BLC - Shower Areas 18,000                     18,000                   18,000 18,000                 18,000
Scheme is under development and is estimated to be delivered 

by March 2021.

DA T&SLC - Plant Valves 28,000                    28,000                   28,000 28,000                 28,000 Scheme is under development and assessment ongoing

CW T&SLC - Feasibility Study 53,788                    53,788                   53,788 53,788                 52,234                 53,788
Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by 

December 2020.

DA All Leisure Centres - Pool Plant Equipment Replacement 7,137                      7,137                     7,137 7,137                   4,198                   7,137
Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by 

March 2021.

DA All Leisure Centres - Energy Management 10,000                    10,000                   10,000 10,000                 10,000 Scheme is under development and assessment ongoing

LW Thirsk & Sowerby Sports Village 399,414                  399,414                 37,248 436,662 399,414 (23,752) 61,000                 129,263               436,662

Request of £61,000 of funding from Hambleton District Council 

to provide a car park facility. £23,752 which is funded from S106 

is requested to be rolled forward to 2021/22. The scheme is 

progressing and the vehicular and pedestrian access to west of 

the site has commenced and is due to be completed by the end 

of July 2020.  A quote for the temporary car park provision has 

also been accepted and works for this will be completed in 

August.  A bid to British Cycling for £50k has been submitted.     

LW Northallerton Sports Village -                        15,000 15,000                   15,000 -                       3,927                   15,000                  

Request of £15,000 for the scheme to cover expenditure for 

professional fees to provide documentation to support an ERDF 

for £500k that was submitted in May 2020 - the outcome is 

currently unknown and further works are now on hold until 

confirmation of funding has been received.

Cllr Sanderson        

Portfolio Holder for 

Governance

CT Public lighting replacement 36,000                     (6,548) 29,452 29,452 29,452                 999                      29,452                  
Scheme is in progress and estimated to be completed by March 

2021.

CT LED Lantern Replacement Scheme 9,854 9,854 9,854 9,854 -                       9,854                    Scheme completed and awaiting final invoices.

CT Air Conditioning - Legislation requirement 3,803                      3,803 3,803 3,803                   3,803                    Finalising the scheme in Quarter 3

CT Forum Atrium - Capital Repairs 10,000                    10,000 10,000 10,000                 10,000                  Scheme is under development and assessment ongoing

CT Facilities Lightening Protection 11,442                    11,442 11,442 11,442                 11,442                  Scheme is under development and assessment ongoing

CT Civic Centre - Accommodation 41,597                    41,597 41,597 41,597                 13,899                 41,597                  

Scheme was suspend during Quarter 1 due to Covid-19 and 

work has recommenced in Quarter 2 in which it will be 

completed. 

CT Civic Centre - Fire Alarm System 45,000                     45,000 45,000 45,000                 45,000                  Scheme is under development and assessment ongoing

CT Civic Centre - Roof Verges 15,000                     15,000 15,000 15,000                 15,000                  Scheme is under development and assessment ongoing

CT Energy Efficiency - Market Assessment 8,160                      8,160 8,160 8,160                   8,160                    Scheme is under development and assessment ongoing

CT Car Park Reinstatements 99,256                    99,256 99,256 99,256                 99,256                  
Scheme in preparation and planned delivery of scheme in 

Quarter 3

CT Car Park Improvement Scheme 509,737                  509,737 509,737 509,737               37,588                 509,737                
Scheme is progressing, some elements delayed due to Covid-

19. Scheme is expected to be completed by March 2021.

CT Adoptions - Electric Bollards - Thirsk & Northallerton 7,790                      7,790 7,790 7,790                   7,790                    

Schemes are delayed due to Covid -19 and are recommenced in 

Quarter 2. The bollards for Northallerton will be delivered in 

conjunction with the Northallerton High Street projects. Thirsk 

bollards will be delivered in conjunction with the electric charging 

points within the Car Park Improvement Scheme.
Total Scheme Value Leisure & Communities 217,000                   1,388,369               1,605,369              51,535                   1,656,904              409,268           8,752-                        1,256,388            258,056               1,656,904             

P
age 7



Capital Programme Schemes 2020/21 Annex A

Councillor / Officer
Project 

owner
Capital Scheme Budget 2020/21 2019/20 B/Fwd Total 2020/21 Qtr 1 Qtr 1 + 2020/21

Third Party 

Cont

Third Party Cont             

Qtr 1

Cost to the 

Council                                    

£

 Expenditure at 

30th June 2020 

Anticipated 

Expenditure Year 

End

Explanation

Cllr Watson                   

Portfolio Holder for 

Environmental Health, 

Waste and Recycling
Environment

 GB  Purchase of bins and boxes for refuse and recycling 60,000                     4,317                      64,317                   64,317 10,000 54,317 30,600                 64,317                  Scheme is progressing

SSe/GB Northallerton Depot Improvement Scheme 92,294                    92,294                   92,294 92,294                 -                       92,294                  
The original scheme is on hold and the project is to being 

developed to manage the asbestos on site

SSe/GB Northallerton Depot - Access Road Resurfacing 35,000                     35,000                   35,000 35,000                 35,000                  Scheme is under development and assessment ongoing

SSe/GB Northallerton Depot External Works 4,917                      4,917                     4,917 4,917                   -                       4,917                    
Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by 

March 2021.

SSe/GB Fly Tipping Project Equipment Surveillance 17,885                    17,885                   17,885 17,885                 -                       17,885                  
Scheme is in development and estimated to be completed by 

March 2021.

SSe/GB WASS - Digital Depot System 96,400                    96,400                   96,400 96,400                 81,425                 96,400                  
Scheme is progressing and is estimated to be implemented by 

March 2021.

SSe/GB Waste and Street Scene - Telematics 12,050                    12,050                   12,050 12,050                 12,050                  
Scheme is progressing to testing stage and estimated to be 

completed before March 2021.

SSe/GB Dash Camera Small Fleet 11,440                    11,440                   11,440 11,440                 11,440                  Scheme is completed and final invoices to be received.

Total Scheme Value Environment 95,000                     239,303                  334,303                 -                         334,303                 10,000             -                            324,303               112,025               334,303                

Cllr Wilkinson     

Portfolio Holder for 

Economic Development 

& Finance

Economy & Planning

CT Bedale Gateway Car Park 521,710                  521,710 521,710 521,710               -                       521,710                Scheme currently under review.

EB/SSw Bedale Bridge and Cycle Scheme 491,333                  491,333 491,333 439,128 52,205                 4,147                   491,333                Scheme is under development and assessment ongoing

JT Workspaces Health and Safety Aspects 3,151                      3,151 3,151 3,151                   1,557                   3,151                    Project completion estimated during Quarter 2.

JT Workspaces - Electrical Distribution Replacement 30,000                     30,000 30,000 30,000                 30,000                  Project completion estimated during Quarter 4.

JT Workspace Renewal Scheme 1,570                      1,570 1,570 1,570                   1,570                    Project completion estimated during Quarter 2.

JT Workspaces - Roller Shutter Doors 8,000                       8,000 8,000 8,000                   8,000                    
A review of the condition of doors is expected to take place 

during Quarter 2.

JT Workspaces - Lift Works (LOLER) 6,000                      6,000 6,000 6,000                   6,000                    
A review of the condition of lifts is expected to take place during 

Quarter 2.

JT Workspaces - Air Con Refurbishments 6,000                      6,000 6,000 6,000                   6,000                    
A review of the condition at Evolution is expected to take place 

during Quarter 2.

SSw Northallerton Connections 2,523,688               2,523,688              2,523,688 2,523,688 -                       48,175                 2,523,688             Scheme is progressing.

SSw North Northallerton Infrastructure scheme -                          -                        618,024 618,024.00            618,024 -                       -                       618,024                
Request of £618,024 which is fully funded by grant already 

received.

SSw Dalton Bridge Voluntary Contribution Business 6,491                      6,491 6,491 6,491                   6,491                    Retention money to be reviewed after the completion of Phase 2.

Cllr Webster                    

Portfolio Holder for 

Planning

SWT Disabled Facilities Grant 400,000                   85,310                    485,310 77,134 562,444 485,310 77,134 -                       4,683                   562,444                
Additional grant of £77,134 received and with schemes 

progressing. 

Total Scheme Value Economy & Planning 438,000                   3,645,253               4,083,253              695,158                 4,778,411              3,448,126        695,158                    635,127               58,562                 4,778,411             

 

Cllr Sanderson        

Portfolio Holder for 

Governance

Finance & Commercial

JP ICT Improvements 2020/21 84,830                     75,055                    159,885 159,885 159,885               14,813                 159,885                
Projects ongoing with further spend expected Quarter 2 and 

projects completed during Quarter 4.

JP ICT Council Chamber 3,065                      3,065 3,065 3,065                   1,755                   3,065                    Project Ongoing with further spend expected in Quarter 3

SH Web Accessibility Upgrade. 79,770                    79,770 79,770 79,770                 19,200                 79,770                  
Project ongoing with project delivery due to be complete during 

Quarter 2.

SH CRM/Mitel Telephony Integration 7,000                      7,000 7,000 7,000                   7,000                    
This is linked to a project within the ICT improvements scheme 

with project completion expected Quarter 4. 

JP ICT Customer Excellence 4,698                      4,698 4,698 4,698                   4,698                    Project Ongoing with further spend expected in Quarter 3

CT ICT - Public Lighting software upgrade 24,000                     24,000 24,000 24,000                 24,000                  Scheme paused.

Cllr Wilkinson     

Portfolio Holder for 

Economic Development 

& Finance

IG ICT - Civica Estore and Icon Upgrade V17.3/v18 54,760                    54,760 54,760 54,760                 54,760                  Business Case to be reviewed during Quarter 3.

SC ICT - Finance System 50,008                    50,008 50,008 50,008                 13,000                 50,008                  

Project ongoing with further integration  works and server 

migration to take place during Quarter 2 with project completion 

expected Quarter 3.
SG Housing Benefits - Electronic Forms & CRM Portal 20,000                    20,000 20,000 20,000                 20,000                  Project Ongoing with further spend expected Quarter 3

SG ICT - Northgate System Upgrade 1,000                      1,000 1,000 1,000                   1,000                    Project Ongoing with further spend expected in Quarter 3

Cllr Webster                    

Portfolio Holder for 

Planning

AR DM - Development Management Information System (MIS) 48,200                    48,200 48,200 48,200                 48,200                  Project under review.

Cllr Watson                   

Portfolio Holder for 

Environmental Health, 

Waste and Recycling

VF EHO - Management Information System (MIS) 5,170                      5,170 5,170 5,170                   5,170                    
Further consultancy commissioned during Quarter 2 with project 

completion expected during Quarter 3.

Total Scheme Value Finance & Commercial 108,830                   348,726                  457,556                 -                         457,556                 -                  -                            457,556               48,768                 457,556                

P
age 8



Capital Programme Schemes 2020/21 Annex A

Councillor / Officer
Project 

owner
Capital Scheme Budget 2020/21 2019/20 B/Fwd Total 2020/21 Qtr 1 Qtr 1 + 2020/21

Third Party 

Cont

Third Party Cont             

Qtr 1

Cost to the 

Council                                    

£

 Expenditure at 

30th June 2020 

Anticipated 

Expenditure Year 

End

Explanation

Cllr Wilkinson     

Portfolio Holder for 

Economic Development 

& Finance

Economic Development Fund

SSw Dalton Bridge EDF Improvement Infrastructure 14,057                    14,057 14,057 14,057                 14,057                  Retention money to be reviewed after the completion of Phase 2.

SSw Industrial Estates/Employment land 74,965                    74,965 74,965 74,965                 74,965                  Scheme is under development and assessment ongoing

SSw Footfall Counters 10,000                    10,000 (5,000) 5,000 5,000                   -                       5,000                    

Original supplier no longer suitable and a new scheme designed 

with capital implementation reduced by £5,000. Request to move 

£5,000 to revenue.

SSw Skills Village -                          -                        84,000 84,000 84,000                 -                       84,000                  Request of £84,000 for new Skills village project.

SSw Industrial Park Review 484,436                   60,000                    544,436 (484,436) 60,000 60,000                 1,650                   60,000                  

Original allocation of £484,436 for 2020/21 no longer required 

and requested to be return to the Economic Development Fund 

(EDF)  

Total Scheme Value Economic Development Fund 484,436                   159,022                  643,458                 (405,436) 238,022                 -                  -                            238,022               1,650                   238,022                

Cllr Wilkinson     

Portfolio Holder for 

Economic Development 

& Finance

Corporate Schemes

SSw Dalton Bridge BID Payment 31,735 31,735 31,735 31,735                 31,735                  Retention spend to be reviewed after the completion of Phase 2.

SSw Dalton Bridge Phase 2 -                          -                        150,000 150,000 150,000               150,000                
Request of £150,000 to support NYCC remedial works to the 

Dalton Bridge alleviation scheme.

SSw Skills Village -                          -                        33,210 33,210 33,210                 -                       33,210                  
Request of £33,210 for Skills village project which is linked to 

Economic Development Fund Capital scheme. 

HH
Commercial Investment Property portfolio

30,000,000             30,000,000 30,000,000 -                  -                            30,000,000          30,000,000           
Further details are available in the Commercial Investment 

strategy report on this September 2020 Cabinet Agenda

HH Treadmills Phase 1 4,799,451               4,799,451 4,799,451 -                  -                            4,799,451            575,695               4,799,451             Project ongoing with estimated completion in Quarter 2.

HH Treadmills Phase 2 9,612,700                (209,026) 9,403,674 9,403,674 -                  -                            9,403,674            234,274               9,403,674             Project ongoing with Phase 2a due to be completed Quarter 4.

HH Crematorium 211,868                  211,868 138,632                 350,500 -                  -                            350,500               600                      350,500                
Request of £138,632 to further develop the scheme to tender 

stage for the principal contractors

Total Scheme Value Corporate Schemes 9,612,700                34,834,028             44,446,728            321,842                 44,768,570            -                  -                            44,768,570          810,568               44,768,570           

Total Capital Programme 2020/21 10,955,966 40,614,701 51,570,667 663,099 52,233,766 3,867,394 686,406 47,679,966 1,289,629            52,233,766

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



            
           Annex B 

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME: 
 
1.1 The proposed changes to the capital programme, detailed for each of the portfolio 

areas are listed below:  
 
1.2       Leisure and Communities – 3 schemes affect the capital programme at Quarter 1:  

 
(a) Northallerton Leisure Centre – Pool Flume Improvements – this scheme is now 

complete and the underspend of £713 is to be returned to the fund.  
 

(b) Thirsk & Sowerby Sports Village – request of additional £61,000 of funding from 
Hambleton District Council to provide a car park facility.  In addition, £23,752 
which is funded from Section 106 agreements is requested to roll forward to 
2021/22. 
 

(c) Northallerton Sports Village – request of £15,000 which will be funded from 
Section 106 agreements to cover expenditure for professional fees which will 
provide documentation to support an ERDF claim for £500,000. 
 

 
1.3        Economy and Planning – 2 schemes affect the capital programme at Quarter 1: 
 

(a) North Northallerton Infrastructure Scheme – request of £618,024 which is funded 
from Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) contribution. 
 

(b) Disabled Facilities Grants – additional grant of £77,134 than first anticipated has 
been received. 

    
 
1.4       Economic Development Fund - 3 schemes affect the capital programme at Quarter 1: 
 

(a) Footfall Counters – request for £5,000 to be moved to revenue as the original 
supplier is no longer suitable and a new capital scheme designed with capital 
implementation has been reduced by £5,000. 
 

(b) Skills Village – request of £84,000 for the new Skills Village Project. 
 

(c) Industrial Park Review – the original allocation for 2020/21 is no longer required 
and it is requested to return £484,436 to the Economic Development Fund (EDF) 

 
1.5 Corporate Schemes – 3 schemes affect the capital programme at Quarter 1: 
 

(a) Dalton Bridge Phase 2 – request of £150,000 to support North Yorkshire County 
Council remedial works to the Dalton Bridge alleviation scheme. 
 

(b) Skills Village – request of £33,210 for the Skills Village Project which is linked to 
the Economic Development Fund Capital Scheme. 

 

(c) Crematorium – request of £138,632 to further develop the scheme to the tender 
stage for the principal contractors. 

  

Page 11



1.6     Capital schemes are monitored on a monthly basis and reported to Cabinet quarterly, 
ensuring that the majority of schemes are held within budget or reported to Council at 
the earliest opportunity. 

 
1.7     New Schemes added to the capital programme all have supporting Project Initiation 

Documentation to ensure projects are affordable, sustainable and prudent. 
 

 

Page 12



  ANNEX C 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT POSITION 2020/21 – QUARTER 1 
 
1.0 LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENT: 
 
1.1 The CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) Code of Practice for 

Treasury Management recommends that members be updated on treasury management 
activities regularly (Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Annual and Mid-year 
reports, as well as quarterly updates). This report therefore ensures this Council is 
implementing best practice in accordance with the Code. 

 
1.2 The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and scrutiny of 

treasury management policy and activities.  This Quarter 1 report therefore updates 
Members on the current treasury management position and is presented to Cabinet and 
also Audit, Governance and Standards Committee. 

 
1.3 The Council’s treasury management position is based on its requirement to fund the capital 

programme and it’s operational cash flow need.  The Council looks to balance the 
requirement to borrow from external sources with the surplus funds that are available. 

 
1.4 During 2019/20 the Council supported its Capital Expenditure by capital receipts, reserves, 

revenue contribution, long term borrowing and the use of surplus funds for cash flow 
purposes.  The council continues to have an underlying need to borrow for capital purposes 
and has long term external borrowing of £27,700,000 at an average interest rate of 2.21%.  
These loans were all taken from Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) as follows: 

 

Loan 
Number 

Amount (£) Start Date Maturity 
Date 

Number of 
Years 

Interest 
Rate 

1 1,200,000 05/09/16 05/09/21 5 1.05 

2 9,000,000 07/03/19 07/03/69 50 2.45 

3 2,500,000 25/03/19 25/03/64 45 2.24 

4 5,000,000 02/09/19 02/09/29 10 1.20 

5 5,000,000 05/09/19 05/19/34 15 1.43 

6 2,500,000 16/03/20 16/09/67 47.5 2.23 

7 2,500,000 16/03/20 16/09/33 13.5 2.19 

 
 
1.5 The capital financing requirement in 2020/21, which is the amount of borrowing required to 

support the capital expenditure programme, is set at £86,073,196.  The capital expenditure 
of the Council is supported by grants, contributions, reserves and borrowing.  The capital 
financing requirement refers to the amount of borrowing that could be taken to support the 
capital expenditure programme. 

 
1.6  The following table shows the treasury management position as at 30 June 2020:- 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 1: Borrowing and Investment position at 30 June 2020 
 

  30 June 20 Rate 

  £000’s % 

Capital Financing Requirement 86,073  

Borrowing 27,700 2.21 

Investments 16,250 0.30 

Page 13



1.7 The table shows that changes in the capital expenditure programme only affects the 
treasury management position through the surplus funds that are available to the Council to 
invest, to earn investment income. 

 
2.0 THE ECONOMY, INTEREST RATES AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY: 
 
2.1 The economic background and interest rate forecast, which sets the environment in which 

the Council’s treasury management operates, is attached at Annex D. 
 
 
3.0 ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2020/21 – QUARTER 1: 
 
3.1 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2020/21 which includes the 

Annual Investments Strategy, was approved by the Council on 25 February 2020.  It sets 
out the Council’s investment priorities as being: 

 Security of capital; 
 Liquidity; 
 Yield 
 

3.2 The Council’s priority is security of its surplus funds when investing with financial 
institutions.  However the Council will always aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on 
investments in line with its risk appetite and which is commensurate with proper levels of 
liquidity and security. In the current economic climate it is considered appropriate to keep 
investments short term to cover cash flow needs, but also to seek out value available in 
periods up to 12 months.  Investments are placed with highly credit rated financial 
institutions, using the Council’s treasury Management advisers – Link Asset Services - 
suggested creditworthiness approach including sovereign credit rating and Credit Default 
Swap (CDS) overlay information provided by Link Asset Services.   

 
3.3 Although the credit rating agencies changed their outlook on many UK banks from stable to 

negative outlook during this quarter, due to upcoming risks to banks’ earnings and asset 
quality during the economic downturn caused by the pandemic, the majority of ratings were 
affirmed due to the continuing strong credit profiles of UK banks.  Although Credit Default 
Swap (CDS) prices, (these are market indicators of credit risk), for UK banks spiked 
upwards at the end of March due to the liquidity crisis throughout financial markets, those 
Credit Default Swap (CDS) prices have returned to more average levels since then. 

 

3.4 The average level of funds available for investment purposes during Quarter 1 –                 
30 June 2020 - was £24,381,648.  The level of funds available is higher than previous 
years due to receiving government grants relating to COVID-19, it is also dependant on the 
timing of precept payments, receipt of other grants and the progress of the Capital 
Programme.  The Council held £16,250,000 cash flow balances at the end of Quarter 1.   

 
3.5  The Council is currently not experiencing any cash flow issues as a result of COVID-19, the 

amount of borrowing continues to support the level of the capital programme and the level 
of the shortfall of increased expenditure and income losses from the pandemic.  There are 
currently no changes to the Treasury Management Strategy.  Further information relating to 
Covid-19 regarding income, expenditure and reserves are included in the 2020/21 Quarter 
1 Revenue Monitoring report.   

 
3.6  

T
a
b
l
Table 2: Investment performance for quarter 1 at 30 June 2020  

 

Benchmark Benchmark Return Council Performance Investment Interest Earned 

7 day  -0.04% 0.30% £18,452 

Page 14



3.7 The table shows that the Council monitors its cash flow investments against the 7 day rate. 
The Council outperformed the 7 day benchmark by 0.34%.  The current 7 day benchmark 
return shows a negative amount due to the 7 day benchmark being calculated using the 
London Inter-Bank Bid (LIBID) rate which is linked to the London Inter-Bank Offer Rate 
(LIBOR) figure.  The Bank of England Base Rate is currently just 0.1%, which means the 
LIBOR rate will be a similar rate, if not lower given the large amount of liquidity in the very 
short end of the market.  Therefore this effects the LIBID rates as they are always lower 
than the LIBOR rate so at the very short end of the curve the LIBID 7 day benchmark is a 
negative figure. 

 
3.8 The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2020/21 was approved at £35,000.  Following 

the Bank of England Base Rates cuts in March 2020 to 0.10%, interest rates available on 
the Council’s investments have reduced in the first quarter of 2020/21, these now range 
from 0% to 0.20%.   

 
3.9 The budget is anticipated to be achieved despite the lower rates due to increased cashflow 

balances available to invest as a result of Government Grants received for example 
£30,866,000 for Business Grants, Business Rates Section 31 grants being paid in full at the 
beginning of the year and other grants relating to COVID-19 support. The amount available 
to invest is also dependant on the timing of payments relating to the Capital Programme. 

 
4.0 BORROWING 2020/21 – QUARTER 1 
 
4.1 At 30 June 2020 the Council had seven loans borrowed from the Public Works Loan Board 

(PWLB) to the value of £27,700,000, these can be seen in paragraph 1.4.    
 
4.2 Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) rates have fallen a little between the start and end of the 

quarter with not a great deal of volatility between those dates.  The 50 year Public Works 
Loan Board rate for new long term borrowing was 2.30% during the quarter. 

 
4.3 The table below shows the Public Works Loans Board interest rates which were available 

for loans during Quarter 1 of 2020/21.  The Public Works Loans Board is the mechanism by 
which the Government allows local authorities to borrow at slightly lower interest rates than 
are available to other institutions.  Certainty rates, as detailed in the table, are interest rates 
available to local authorities if they inform the Government of their borrowing requirements 
at the beginning of the financial year and are 0.02% (or 20 basis points) below Public 
Works Loans Board rates. This was introduced by the Government in October 2012. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 3: Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) certainty rates, quarter ended 30 June 2020 
 
 

  1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year 

Low 1.77% 1.74% 1.96% 2.40% 2.13% 

Date 30/06/2020 30/06/2020 22/05/2020 18/06/2020 24/04/2020 

High 1.94% 1.99% 2.19% 2.69% 2.45% 

Date 08/04/2020 08/04/2020 08/04/2020 07/04/2020 07/04/2020 

Average 1.84% 1.85% 2.07% 2.50% 2.26% 

Page 15



4.4 Treasury Borrowing: Due to the overall financial position and the underlying need to 
borrow for a capital purposes, the external borrowing position at 31 March 2020 was 
£27,700,000, where all loans were taken from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB).   

 
4.5 No borrowing was undertaken during the quarter ended 30 June 2020.  The requirement of 

additional borrowing will be closely monitored in line with the Council’s capital programme 
throughout 2020/21. 

 
4.6  Debt Rescheduling: Debt rescheduling opportunities have been limited in the current 

economic climate and following the various increases in the margins added to gilt yields 
which has impacted Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) new borrowing rates since October 
2019, no debt rescheduling was undertaken during the quarter ended 30 June 2020 as the 
Council’s borrowing rates remain comparatively low. 

 
4.7  Repayment of Borrowing: the Council did not have any borrowing to repay during Quarter 

1 of 2020/21. 
 
5.0 COMPLIANCE WITH PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY INDICATORS: 
 
5.1 It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the affordable 

borrowing limits. The Council’s approved Treasury and Prudential Indicators (affordability 
limits) were approved in the Treasury Management Strategy Statement by Council on 25 
February 2020 and are in compliance with the Council’s Treasury Management Practices. 

 
5.2 During the financial year to date the Council has operated within the Treasury and 

Prudential Indicators approved which are attached at Annex E.  
 
5.3 Officers can confirm that the approved limits within the Annual Investment Strategy were 

not breached during the Quarter ended 30 June 2020. 
 

Page 16



ANNEX D 
 

Economic Update 

1.1 ECONOMIC BACKGROUND: 
 

United Kingdom 

 

Economic growth 2020 started with optimistic business surveys pointing to an upswing in 

growth after the ending of political uncertainty as a result of the decisive result of the 

general election in December settled the Brexit issue.  However, the three monthly Gross 

Domestic Product statistics in January were disappointing, being stuck at 0.0% growth.  

 

Since then, the whole world has changed as a result of the coronavirus outbreak. The 

overall growth rate in quarter 1 was -2.2%, -1.7% y/y.  However, the main fall in growth did 

not occur until April when it came in at -24.5% y/y after the closedown of whole sections of 

the economy.  What is uncertain, however, is the extent of the damage that will have been 

done to businesses by the end of the lockdown period, how consumer confidence and 

behaviour may be impacted afterwards, whether there could be a second wave of the 

outbreak, how soon a vaccine will be created and then how quickly it can be administered 

to the population. This leaves huge uncertainties as to how quickly the economy will 

recover to what was formerly regarded as normality. However, some changes during 

lockdown are likely to be long lasting e.g. a shift to online purchasing, working from home, 

etc.  

 

The lockdown has also had a sharp effect in depressing expenditure by consumers which 

means their level of savings have increased and debt has fallen. This could provide fuel for 

a potential surge in consumer expenditure once some degree of normality returns. 

 

Although the UK left the European Union on 31 January 2020, we still have much 

uncertainty as to whether there will be a reasonable trade deal achieved by the end of 

2020. At the end of June, the UK government rejected extending the transition period 

beyond 31 December 2020. This has increased the chances of a no-deal Brexit.  However, 

the most likely outcome is expected to be a slim deal on trade in order to minimise as much 

disruption as possible. However, uncertainty is likely to prevail until the deadline date which 

will act as a drag on recovery. 

 

After the Monetary Policy Committee left Bank Rate unchanged at 0.75% in January 2020, 

the onset of the coronavirus epidemic in March forced it into making two emergency cuts in 

Bank Rate first to 0.25% and then to 0.10%. These cuts were accompanied by an increase 

in quantitative easing (QE), essentially the purchases of gilts (mainly) by the Bank of 

England of £200bn.   

 

In June, the Monetary Policy Committee decided to add a further £100bn of quantitative 

easing purchases of gilts, but to be implemented over an extended period to the end of the 

year. The total stock of quantitative easing purchases will then amount to £745bn. It is not 

currently thought likely that the Monetary Policy Committee would go as far as to cut Bank 

Page 17



Rate into negative territory, although the Governor of the Bank of England has said all 

policy measures will be considered.  

 

The Governor also recently commented about an eventual tightening in monetary policy – 

namely that he favours unwinding quantitative easing before raising interest rates. Some 

forecasters think this could be as far away as five years. 

 

The Government and the Bank were also very concerned to stop people losing their jobs 

during this lockdown period. Accordingly, the Government introduced various schemes to 

subsidise both employed and self-employed jobs for three months to the end of June while 

the country is locked down. It also put in place a raft of other measures to help businesses 

access loans from their banks, (with the Government providing guarantees to the banks 

against losses), to tide them over the lockdown period when some firms may have little or 

no income. However, at the time of writing, this leaves open a question as to whether some 

firms will be solvent, even if they take out such loans, and some may also choose to close 

as there is, and will be, insufficient demand for their services. The furlough scheme was 

subsequently extended for another three months to October, but with employers having to 

take on graduated increases in paying for employees during that period. The Bank of 

England expects the unemployment rate to double to 8%. 

 

The Government measures to support jobs and businesses will result in a huge increase in 

the annual budget deficit for the current year, from about 2% to nearly 17%.  The ratio of 

debt to GDP is also likely to increase from 80% to around 105%. In the Budget in March, 

the Government also announced a large increase in spending on infrastructure; this will 

also help the economy to recover once the lockdown is ended.  Economic statistics during 

June were giving a preliminary indication that the economy was recovering faster than 

previously expected. However, it may be a considerable time before economic activity 

recovers fully to its previous level. 

 

The annual inflation rate dropped to 0.5% in May from 0.8% in April and could reach zero 

by the end of the year.  Inflation rising over 2% is unlikely to be an issue for the Monetary 

Policy Committee over the next two years as the world economy will be heading into a 

recession; this has caused a glut in the supply of oil which initially fell sharply in price, 

although the price has recovered somewhat more recently.  

 

Other UK domestic prices will also be under downward pressure; wage inflation was 

already on a downward path over the last half year and is likely to continue that trend in the 

current environment where unemployment will be rising significantly. In May’s Monetary 

Policy Report, the Bank of England predicted that inflation would hit their 2% target by 

2022. This was in the context of its forecast that Gross Domestic Product would rise by 3% 

in 2022 after a recovery during 2021. While inflation could even turn negative in the 

Eurozone, this is currently not likely in the UK.    

 

USA.   

 

Growth in Quarter 1 of 2020 fell by an annualised 5.0% and will fall sharply in quarter 2.  

Once coronavirus started to impact the US in a big way, the Fed took decisive action by 

cutting rates twice by 0.50%, and then 1.00%, in March, all the way down to 0.00 – 0.25%. 

Page 18



Near the end of March, Congress agreed a $2trn stimulus package (worth about 10% of 

Gross Domestic Product) and new lending facilities announced by the Fed which could 

channel up to $6trn in temporary financing to consumers and firms over the coming 

months. Nearly half of the first figure is made up of permanent fiscal transfers to 

households and firms, including cash payments of $1,200 to individuals.  

 

The loans for small businesses, which convert into grants if firms use them to maintain their 

payroll, will cost $367bn and 100% of the cost of lost wages for four months will also be 

covered. In addition there was $500bn of funding from the Treasury’s Exchange 

Stabilization Fund which will provide loans for hard-hit industries, including $50bn for 

airlines. 

 

Non-farm payrolls unexpectedly increased by 2.5 million jobs in May, beating market 

expectations of an 8 million fall, and after declining by a record 20.7 million in April. The 

figures suggest that the economic recovery in the US may happen much faster than initially 

expected.  Some states started reopening in mid-May after a two-month shutdown but a 

few have had to re-impose localised lockdowns since then. 

 

EUROZONE.  

 

The Eurozone economy shrank by 3.6% on quarter in the first three months of 2020. So far, 

the European Central Bank has been by far the most important institution in helping to 

contain the impact of coronavirus and the crisis on financial markets. Since 12th March, it 

has implemented a range of new policies including providing additional cheap loans for 

commercial banks and easing capital requirements for the banking sector. But most 

importantly, the European Central Bank has stepped up and reformed its asset purchase 

programmes. So far, it has increased its planned asset purchases for this year by €1,470bn 

on top of the €20bn per month which it was already committed to. The new purchases 

consist of an additional €120bn within the existing Public Sector Purchase Programme 

(PSPP), and €1,350bn in the Pandemic Emergency Purchase Programme (PEPP). At its 4 

June monetary policy meeting, the European Central Bank Governing Council also 

committed to continue net asset purchases under the Pandemic Emergency Purchase 

Programme until at least the end of June 2021 and to continue to reinvest maturing 

principal payments under the Pandemic Emergency Purchase Programme until at least 

end-2022. It has also made clear that it would not hesitate to top up Pandemic Emergency 

Purchase Programme  as much as needed to contain the risk of a crisis. 

 

Just as important as the size of the Pandemic Emergency Purchase Programme is its 

flexibility. Whereas previous asset purchase programmes adhered to strict issuer limits, the 

Pandemic Emergency Purchase Programme was designed to be flexible across “time, 

asset classes and jurisdictions”. This means that the European Central Bank can act in the 

interests of the euro-zone as a whole rather than having to treat each national bond market 

equally. However, while this overall programme will provide protection over the next year or 

so, some vulnerable countries, particularly Italy, already started the crisis with a high level 

of debt to Gross Domestic Product and the crisis will make that level even worse at the 

same time as Gross Domestic Product growth prospects will have worsened. This leaves a 

big question over ‘what happens after then when financial markets will be concerned that 

those debt levels are unsustainable?’ 

Page 19



What is currently missing is a major coordinated European Union response of fiscal action 

by all national governments to protect jobs, support businesses directly and promote 

economic growth by expanding government expenditure on e.g. infrastructure. The 

European Union’s recently-proposed rescue fund, (officially designated “Next Generation 

European Union”), is a major first step towards financial integration in the European Union.  

However, it is striking just how small this package is as the proposed €500 billion of grants 

amount to about 0.6% of average annual euro-zone Gross Domestic Product (over the 

seven-year budget period). It will therefore supply relatively little support to the weaker and 

more vulnerable countries within the European Union. This has therefore left individual 

national governments to implement a patchwork of support measures within each country. 

This shows up how far away the European Union is from being an effective fiscal union.  

 

CHINA. 

 

Economic growth has been weakening over successive years, despite repeated rounds of 

central bank stimulus; medium-term risks have also been increasing. The major feature of 

2019 was the trade war with the US.  However, this has been eclipsed by being the first 

country to be hit by the coronavirus outbreak; this resulted in a lockdown of the country and 

a major contraction of economic activity in February-March 2020.  The Chinese economy 

shrank 6.8% y/y in Quarter 1 2020, following 6% y/y growth in Quarter 4 of 2019.   

 

Ongoing economic issues remain, in needing to make major progress to eliminate excess 

industrial capacity and to switch investment from property construction and infrastructure to 

consumer goods production. It also needs to address the level of non-performing loans in 

the banking and credit systems. The post Covid government measures to stimulate more 

infrastructure investment are likely to result in an increase in inefficient low reward 

investment. 

 

JAPAN  

 

Japan has been struggling to stimulate consistent significant Gross Domestic Product 

growth for years and to get inflation up to its target of 2%, despite huge monetary and fiscal 

stimulus. It is also making little progress on fundamental reform of the economy. Japan 

appears to have escaped the worst effects of the virus - as yet. 

 

WORLD GROWTH 

 

The trade war between the US and China on tariffs was a major concern to financial 

markets and was depressing worldwide growth during 2019. This year, coronavirus is the 

inevitable big issue which is going to sweep around most countries in the world and have a 

major impact in causing a world recession in growth in 2020.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20

https://www.capitaleconomics.com/publications/european-economics/european-economics-update/ec-fiscal-plan-significant-but-leaves-ecb-a-lot-to-do/


1.2  INTEREST RATE FORECAST: 
 

The Council’s treasury advisor, Link Group, provided the following forecast on 31 March 

2020. This forecast is going to be updated in early July to take account of recent downward 

movements in LIBID rates, (currently they are 3 month 0.01%, 6 month 0.15% and 12 

month 0.33%). 

 

The above table is based on PWLB certainty rates – gilt yields plus 180bps.  

Uncertainty over Brexit caused the Monetary Policy Committee to leave Bank Rate 

unchanged during 2019 and at its January 2020 meeting. However, since then the 

coronavirus outbreak has transformed the economic landscape: in March, the Monetary 

Policy Committee took emergency action twice to cut Bank Rate first to 0.25%, and then to 

0.10%.  It is now unlikely to rise for the next two years pending a protracted recovery of the 

economy from this huge set back. 

Our central assumption is that there will be some form of muddle through agreement on a 

reasonable form of Brexit trade deal but the coronavirus outbreak could affect the timing of 

reaching a deal.  As there is so much uncertainty around the impact of, and pace of 

recovery from this outbreak, the above forecasts currently only cover two years, not three 

as provided in the past. 

GILT YIELDS / PWLB RATES.  There was much speculation during the second half of 

2019 that bond markets were in a bubble which was driving bond prices up and yields down 

to historically very low levels. The context for that was heightened expectations that the US 

could have been heading for a recession in 2020, and a general background of a downturn 

in world economic growth, especially due to fears around the impact of the trade war 

between the US and China, together with inflation generally at low levels in most countries 

and expected to remain subdued; these conditions were conducive to very low bond yields. 

 

While inflation targeting by the major central banks has been successful over the last 30 

years in lowering inflation expectations, the real equilibrium rate for central rates has fallen 

considerably due to the high level of borrowing by consumers: this means that central 

banks do not need to raise rates as much now to have a major impact on consumer 

spending, inflation, etc. This has pulled down the overall level of interest rates and bond 

yields in financial markets over the last 30 years.  We have therefore seen, over the last 

year, many bond yields up to 10 years in the Eurozone turn negative. In addition, there has, 

at times, been an inversion of bond yields in the US whereby 10 year yields have fallen 

below shorter term yields. In the past, this has been a precursor of a recession.  The other 

Link Asset Services Interest Rate View

Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22

Bank Rate View 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

3 Month LIBID 0.45 0.40 0.35 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30

6 Month LIBID 0.60 0.55 0.50 0.45 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40

12 Month LIBID 0.75 0.70 0.65 0.60 0.55 0.55 0.55 0.55

5yr PWLB Rate 1.90 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.10 2.10

10yr PWLB Rate 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30

25yr PWLB Rate 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.70 2.70

50yr PWLB Rate 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50

Page 21



side of this coin is that bond prices are elevated as investors would be expected to be 

moving out of riskier assets i.e. shares, in anticipation of a downturn in corporate earnings 

and so selling out of equities.  

  

Gilt yields had therefore already been on a falling trend during the last year up until the 

coronavirus crisis hit western economies. Since then, we have seen gilt yields fall sharply to 

unprecedented lows as investors panicked during March in selling shares in anticipation of 

impending recessions in western economies and moved cash into safehaven assets i.e. 

government bonds.  

 

However, major western central banks started massive quantitative easing purchases of 

government bonds which has acted to maintain downward pressure on government bond 

yields at a time when there has been a huge and quick expansion of government 

expenditure financed by issuing government bonds; in normal times this would have 

caused bond yields to rise sharply.  At the close of the day on 30 June, all gilt yields from 1 

to 5 years were slightly negative while even 25-year yields were at only 0.71 and 50 year at 

0.54%.  Equity markets have enjoyed a rebound since the lows of March as confidence has 

started to return among investors that the worst is over and recovery is now on the way. 

 

However, HM Treasury imposed two changes of margins over gilt yields for PWLB rates in 

2019-20 without any prior warning; the first on 9 October 2019, added an additional 1% 

margin over gilts to all PWLB rates.  That increase was then at least partially reversed for 

some forms of borrowing on 11 March 2020, but not for mainstream General Fund capital 

schemes, at the same time as the Government announced in the Budget a programme of 

increased spending on infrastructure expenditure.  

 

It also announced that there would be a consultation with local authorities on possibly 

further amending these margins; this was to end on 4 June but the date has since been put 

back to 31 July. It is clear that the Treasury will no longer allow local authorities to borrow 

money from the PWLB to purchase commercial property if the aim is solely to generate an 

income stream (assets for yield).  There is a further item on the September 2020 cabinet 

agenda in relation to this matter – The Commercial Investment Strategy Report. 

 

Following the changes on 11 March 2020 in margins over gilt yields, the current situation is 

as follows: -  

 PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 200 basis points  

 PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 180 basis points  

 PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points  

 PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps  

 Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps  
 

As the interest forecast table for PWLB certainty rates (gilts plus 180bps) above shows, 

there is likely to be little upward movement in PWLB rates over the next two years as it will 

take economies a prolonged period to recover all the momentum they will lose in the sharp 

recession that will be caused during the coronavirus shut down period. Inflation is also likely 

to be very low during this period and could even turn negative in some major western 

economies during 2020-21.  

 

Page 22



Annex E 
 
Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators 2020/21 – 30 June 2020 
 
 
It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the 
affordable borrowing limits – the Authorised Limit and the Operational Boundary - as 
detailed below.  The Council approved the Treasury and Prudential Indicators 
(affordability limits), for the 2020/21 financial year at Council on 25 February 2020 in 
the Treasury Management Strategy Statement. 
 
The main purpose of the indicators is to control how much a Council needs to 
borrow. 
In 2020/21, The Treasury Management Strategy Statement approved the capital 
financing requirement at £86,073,196 on which gives the Council the ability to either 
use surplus funds to support the capital expenditure or to take external borrowing.  
 
The indicators provide information on the Council’s general and commercial 
activities. At quarter 1 no commercial activity had occurred. 
 
The Prudential and Treasury Indicators are detailed below as approved at Council 
prior to the beginning of the 2020/21 financial year – Original Budget - and Quarter 1 
Actual: 
 
 

1.  PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2020/21 2020/21 

Extract from budget and rent setting report  
Original 
Budget 

Actual 
Q1 

 £'000 £'000 

Capital Expenditure 51,571 52,234 

    

Capital Financing Requirement 31 March 2021 86,073 86,179 

 Capital Financing Requirement – Brought Forward 56,220 41,560 

 Capital Financing Requirement – Council Services 14,929 14,619 

 Capital Financing Requirement – Commercial Activities 14,924 30,000 

   

Annual Change in the Capital Financing 
Requirement 

-  106 

    

 In year borrowing requirement 34,300 30,000 

  Brought forward 1 April 34,700 27,700 

  Carried forward 31 March  69,000 57,700 

  Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream 12.00% 12.00% 

 
  

Page 23



 

2.  TREASURY MANAGEMENT  INDICATORS  2020/21 2020/21 

 
Original 
Budget 

Actual 
Q1 

 £'000 £'000 

Authorised Limit for external debt  90,000 90,000 

   

Operational Boundary for external debt  88,400 88,400 

   

External debt 69,000 27,700 

    

Investments  2,229 16,250 
 

Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing during 
2020/21 

Lower limit Upper limit 

Under 12 months 0% 100% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 100% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 100% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 100% 

10 years to 20 years 0% 100% 

20 years to 30 years 0% 100% 

30 years to 40 years 0% 100% 

40 years to 50 years 0% 100% 
 

 

Page 24



Annex F 

Third Party Companies Update at Quarter 1 2020/21 

1.0 Introduction  

1.1 The purpose of this Annex is to provide information in line with the Local Government Ethical 
Standards and The Review undertaken by the Committee on Standards in Public Life. This 
identified areas of ‘best practice’ for local authorities which represent a benchmark for ethical 
practice.  It recommends that the Council should report on separate bodies they have set up / 
created or which they own and publish the separate bodies annual reports and minutes in an 
accessible place.  Reporting on the separate bodies will also be included in the Council’s 
annual governance statement which is presented to the Audit Governance and Standards 
Committee on an annual basis in July each year. 

 
1.2 In order for the Council to provide a full picture of the relationship with separate bodies and 

abide by the Nolan principle of openness and to be transparent the information included here 
reports on the financial position of the Council’s third party bodies and also provides 
information on the location of the annual reports. 

 
1.3 The Council has set up third party bodies, in line with legal requirements, as set out in the 

Council Plan to ensure ongoing financial sustainability and further information is included 
below.  The Council creates and supports new opportunities and new income streams to 
ensure the on-going affordability of council services.  

  
 
2.0 Third Party Companies 

 
2.1 The Council currently has a Joint venture Partnership with Wykeland – Central Northallerton 

Development Company Ltd - that was formed in October 2017.  Further information is detailed 
below. 

 
2.3 In addition, two further companies limited by shares have been set up in line with the 

September 2019 Council approval of the Commercial Property Investment Portfolio and 
delegated authority given to the Chief Executive to set up a further wholly owned company for 
the purpose of acquiring and managing investment properties.  The two companies are: 

 Hambleton District Holdings 

 Hambleton Property Limited 

  
2.4 At Quarter 1, 30 June 2020 no investment had occurred and a further report – Commercial 

Investment Strategy - is in included as a separate agenda item at this 8 September 2020 
Cabinet.  

  
3.0 Central Northallerton Development Company Limited 

3.1 Annual Accounts 2019/20 – Central Northallerton Development Company Limited has 
produced final accounts for three years where the annual report and financial statements 31 
March 2020 are published at Companies House and are also available on the Council’s 
website.  The link is as follows: 
https://www.hambleton.gov.uk/info/20257/council_budget_and_spending/267/statement_of_ac
counts/4 

 
3.2 Quarter 1 2020/21 as 30 June 2020 - Attached at Appendix A is Central Northallerton 

Development Company Limited’s financial position at Quarter 1 2020/21, which is supplied for 
transparency purposes. The following highlights information from the accounts: 

 

 The accounts show a small loss for the financial period from 1 April 2020 to 30 June 

2020 of £1,957 due to the general running costs of CNDCL being slightly higher than the 

rent received from Crosby Road Car Park. 

Page 25

https://www.hambleton.gov.uk/info/20257/council_budget_and_spending/267/statement_of_accounts/4
https://www.hambleton.gov.uk/info/20257/council_budget_and_spending/267/statement_of_accounts/4


 

 The ‘Turnover’ is the rent received from Crosby Road Car Park of £17,697 where HDC 

receives 100% of the initial £55,000, £55,000 to £70,000 goes to CNDCL (of which HDC 

will receive 50%) and then after £70,000 HDC receives 60% and Wykeland 40%.  This is 

detailed in the 4 September 2018 Cabinet report; 

 

 The ‘Investment Properties’ detailed in the balance sheet mainly relate to the Crosby 

Road Car park, where there is also a small amount of ‘Plant’ at £2,370. 

 

 The ‘Inventories’ figure £1,788,393, in the balance sheet mainly relates to the 

development of the south side of the Treadmills site, where the site is due to complete in 

Autumn 2020.  The expenditure has been funded by Hambleton District Council in line 

with Council approval of the process to purchase the south side of The Treadmills site in 

July 2018.  The site is scheduled to open with Lidl and Iceland in November 2020. 

 

 The ‘Loan from Hambleton District Council’ in the balance sheet of £2,415,248 is in 

relation to the land transfer of the former prison site for the development of Treadmills 

along with Wykeland.   

 

 The loss brought forward from previous years is £76,356, with the total loss standing at 

£78,313.  On completion of the south side of the Treadmills site the accounts will be in 

profit. 

 

  

Page 26



Appendix A 

Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2021 - for the period ending 30 June 
2020 

    

  
Period ended Year ended 

  Notes 30-Jun-20 31-Mar-20 

Turnover 
 

17,697 98,304 

Cost of Sales   0 0 

Gross profit (loss) 
 

17,697 98,304 

Administrative expenses   (19,654) (107,389) 

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation 
 

(1,957) (9,085) 

Tax on loss on ordinary activities   0 0 

Profit/(Loss) for the financial year/period   (1,957) (9,085) 

        

Balance Sheet for the for the period ending 30 June 2020 
    Notes 30-Jun-20 31-Mar-20 

Fixed Assets       

Investment Properties 
 

94,610 94,610 

Plant   2,370 0 

    96,980 94,610 

Current Assets 
   Inventories 
 

1,788,393 2,304,205 

Debtors 
 

594 35,435 

Cash at bank and in hand   713,511 780,694 

    2,502,498 3,120,334 

Creditors: amounts falling due in within one year   (262,539) (876,048) 

Net Current assets/(liabilities)   2,239,959 2,244,286 

Total assets less current liabilities   2,336,939 2,338,896 

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year   (2,415,248) (2,415,248) 

Net Liabilities   (78,309) (76,352) 

    Capital and Reserves 
   Called up share capital 
 

4 4 

Profit and loss account   (78,313) (76,356) 

Total shareholder' deficit   (78,309) (76,352) 

        

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2021 - for the period ending 30 June 2020 

 

Called up 
share capital 

Profit and 
(loss) 

account 

Total 
shareholders' 

deficit 

  £ £ £ 

Balance at 31 March 2020 
                        

4  (76,356) (76,352) 

Profit / (Loss)for the financial year to date 
                         
-  (1,957) (1,957) 

Balance at 30 June 2020 
                        

4  (78,313) (78,309) 
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 8 September 2020 
 
Subject: 2020/21 Q1 Revenue Monitoring Report  
 
Portfolio Holder: Economic Development and Finance 
 Councillor P R Wilkinson  
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and Background     
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Members on the revenue budget position of 

the Council and the reserve funds at the end of June 2020. 
 
1.2 The Quarter 1 monitoring for the Capital Programme and Treasury Management 

position is contained in a separate report on this Cabinet agenda. 
 
1.3 This report focuses on three key areas:- 
 
 (a) Changes to the revenue budget 
 (b) Additional grant income received 

(c) Reserve funds 
  
1.4 The report also highlights the impact of COVID-19 on the financial position of the 

Council. 
 
2.0 Revenue Budget 
 
2.1 The Council set its budget on 11 February 2020 for 2020/21 at £9,269,670 in line 

with the approved Financial Strategy 2020/21 to 2029/30. 
 
2.2 The breakdown of the budget in accordance with the Council themes when the 

budget was approved was as follows: 

 £ 

Economy & Planning 1,969,330 

Environment 4,051,070 

Finance & Commercial 23,330 

Law & Governance 1,351,240 

Leisure & Communities 1,726,100 

Drainage Board levies 148,600 

Net Revenue Expenditure 9,269,670 

 
  

Page 29

Agenda Item 4



3.0 Budget Position to June 2020: 
 
3.1 Since the budget for 2020/21 was set in February 2020, adjustments to the budget 

outlook have occurred.  The table below details the changes that have been 
approved through separate reports to Cabinet and also those that have been 
identified at Quarter 1 budget monitoring.  The impact of the costs and loss of 
income incurred as a result of covid-19 are shown separately. 

 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

  £ £ £ £ 

Budget Outlook approved at 11 February 2020 9,269,670 9,269,670 9,495,879 9,622,300 

Changes to budget outlook:     

Inflation – salaries and contracts - 298,604 553,527 309,996 

Back funded pension (NYCC) - - - 250,000 

Insurance fund - 25,000 27,000 29,000 

Inflation Contracts - 25,000 25,500 26,010 

Future High Street Fund - 106,000 - - 

Finance Costs - 184,948 - - 

Route Optimisation - 263,000 16,320 - 

Fees & Charges - (136,350) (139,077) (141,858) 

Other Income Streams - (327,248) (309,880) (215,387) 

Savings Exercise - (212,745) (46,969) (300,638) 

Route Optimisation - - - - 

Corporate Costs : 48,030 (48,030) - - 

Departmental Movements:- 78,300 (78,300) - - 

Savings or additional income requirements in 
Quarters 2, 3 and 4 

(126,330) 126,330 - - 

Budget Outlook Q1 9,269,670 9,495,879 9,622,300 9,579,423 

Financial Strategy 11 Feb 2020 9,269,670 9,495,879 9,622,300 9,579,423 

Budget Outlook Q1 Surplus / (Shortfall) - - - - 

COVID-19 Costs 3,580,032 (3,580,032) - - 

 

3.2 In 2020/21 the budget started at £9,269,670 as stated in the Financial Strategy and 
illustrated in the table above.  At the end of Quarter 1, it is recognised that there is 
currently a shortfall of £126,330, however during the year it is anticipated that 
additional income or reduced expenditure will occur to cover this overspend.  
Therefore, at Quarter 1 it is requested Cabinet approves that there is no change to 
the budget of £9,269,670 and the Budget will be closely monitored to identify the 
shortfall. 

 
3.3 In addition to the shortfall in paragraph 3.2, there has been additional expenditure 

and loss of income estimated as a result of COVID-19 of £4,891,420, the Council 
has been allocated grants from the Government of £1,311,388 to support the 
Council during the pandemic resulting in an increased budget of £3,580,032.  This 
is to be monitored during the year where currently additional support from the 
Government is expected in relation to the loss of income at the Comprehensive 
Spending review in autumn.  If no further funding is received then the Council’s 
reserves will be used. 

 

Page 30



3.4 There are three main areas of changes to the 2020/21 budget at Quarter 1 totalling 
the £126,330 shortfall: 

  
(a) Corporate cost savings of £48,030 
(b) Departmental cost increases of £78,300 
(c) Department movements which have nil effect on the budget 

 
3.5 The Corporate Costs movements in the budget are: 
 

(i) A corporate review of Salary budgets has resulted in savings from various 
vacancies and mini restructures of £358,430, however these savings are 
required to fund an additional £401,660 of expenditure to cover the 
vacancies and the effects of departmental regrades and staff related 
expenditure through the mini restructures.  There has also been salary 
savings of £34,200 relating to Council staff purchasing Holiday during 
2020/21. This results in a total variance of £9,030 of salary related additional 
expenditure at Quarter 1. 

 
(ii) Estimated additional holiday pay of £54,860 has been identified to pay staff 

working ‘additional hours’ within Leisure and Waste Services; a requirement 
in line with legislation. 
 

(iii) The annual Drainage Board Levies were lower than budgeted by £22,270, 
this is notified to the Council after the budget was set for 2019/20 and is not 
controlled by the Council. 

 
(iv) The business Rates payable on the Council’s own properties has been 

readjusted by an increase of £6,410 due to the budget being set on 
estimated costs. 

 
3.6 Departmental movements create additional expenditure of £78,300 and are detailed 

as follows:- 
 

(i) Economy & Planning – Additional expenditure of £6,870 relates to £13,820 
additional costs relating to the set-up of the C4Di project. This is offset by 
£6,950 due to the Rural Housing Enabler function being funded from 
Commuted Sums rather than the revenue budget. 

 
(ii) Environment – Additional expenditure of £9,010 is required for IT costs 

relating to new software licences to aid with plotting waste and recycling 
collection rounds.   

 
(iii) Finance & Commercial - £1,100 has been saved from the implementation of 

the new Finance archiving solution. 
 
(iv) Law & Governance – Additional expenditure of £38,520 relates to £30,870 of 

additional expenditure for the revenue costs of the new Human Resources 
and Payroll system agreed late February 2020 after the budget was set.  
£7,650 of additional expenditure is required for increased fees for the 
Council’s assurance service with Veritau. 

 

Page 31



(v) Leisure and Communities – Additional expenditure of £25,000 relates to 
£30,000 of expenditure being required for site supervision at Thirsk and 
Sowerby Sports Village, this is offset by £5,000 of estimated income from the 
site. 

 
3.7 Departmental budget movements that have nil effect on the overall budget but 

exceed £20,000, as detailed in the Council’s Financial Regulations require Cabinet 
approval as follows: 

 
 (i) The 2020/21 grants reserve allocation has been collated and it is therefore 

requested to allocate £48,700 to the relevant grant codes. 
 
3.8 The revised changes to the budget at Quarter 1 total an increase to the budget of 

£126,330. These are listed above, however, it is recognised that additional income 
or reduced expenditure will occur to cover this overspend during the year. 
Therefore, the budget for 2019/20 at Quarter 1 remains at £9,269,670. It should be 
noted that this Quarter 1 position will be monitored against the financial strategy 
over the rest of the year. 

 
4.0  COVID-19 
 
4.1 The current COVID-19 virus has had a huge effect on the Council’s finances and 

government measures have assisted the Council as well as the Hambleton 
residents and businesses via various grants and reliefs.   

 
4.2 The virus has affected the ability for the Council to receive a lot of its fees and 

charges, in total this is estimated to be £3,751,310, the main areas are the four 
Leisure Centres with the closure and reduced capacity resulting in an estimated 
loss of £2,748,730 for the year.  Free parking and reduced visitors has resulted in 
an estimated £447,240 loss of Car Parking income for the year. 

 
4.3 The Council has also had a wide range of increased expenditure as a result of 

COVID-19; this includes IT costs so that members of staff are able to work from 
home, adjustments to Leisure Centres and Offices to comply with social distancing 
advice, Personal Protective Equipment for the staff and increased staffing in areas 
that have the requirements.  The total cost is estimated to be £1,059,410. 

 
4.4 The Council has received the following allocations from the Government in relation 

to COVID-19: 
 

Grant £ 

Government COVID-19 Support Grant 36,767 

Government COVID-19 Support Grant 903,842 

Government COVID-19 Support Grant 120,079 

Government COVID-19 Administration 
Support for Business Grants Scheme 

170,000 

Re-Opening High Streets 80,700 

Total 1,311,388 

 
  

Page 32



4.5 As part of the Governments Small Business Grants and the Retail, Hospitality and 
Leisure Grant Scheme, the Council received £30,866,000.  The Council has 
awarded grants of £10,000 and £25,000 to businesses across Hambleton since 1 
April 2020.  As at mid-August 2020 £28,700,000 has been paid out to 2,495 
businesses in Hambleton which is 93% of those eligible.  The scheme closed on 28 
August 2020. 

 
4.6 The Discretionary Grants scheme was set up to accommodate certain small 

businesses previously outside the scope of the Small Business Grants and the 
Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant Schemes.  The scheme ran twice with the 
second scheme closing on 12 July 2020 and businesses receiving grants on 24 July 
2020.  In total, 188 organisations received funding from the money provided by 
Government at £1,420,000 which was included within the £30,866,000.  Grants 
were awarded to market traders, shared flexible workspace businesses, charities, 
Bed & Breakfast establishments, micro and other small businesses. 

 
4.7 If no further funding is received from Government to support the shortfall described 

then Council reserves will be utilised at £3,580,032.  This position has not yet been 
crystallised at Quarter 1 as further information is waited from Government.  A 
further update will be provided to Members in due course as to the amount of 
reserves required to support the Council’s budget position. 

 
4.8 In addition, in 2021/22 there will be a further cost to the Council from Covid-19 in 

relation to the estimated loss of funding from a reduction in receipts from Council 
Tax, Council Tax Reduction Scheme and Business rates.  This position will become 
clearing the next few months as the Government polices around COVID-19 change 
and the impact is better understood across the UK. 

 
5.0 Revised 2019/20 Revenue Outturn and Position on Reserves 
 
5.1 As reported to Cabinet on 7 July 2020, the final position of the transfer to/from the 

Council Tax Payers Reserve for 2019/20 had not been finalised due to the Council’s 
share of the North and West Yorkshire Business Rate Pilot figures not being 
available from Leeds City Council who are the lead authority of the Business Rate 
Pilot Scheme. 

 
5.2 Following receipt of the figures the estimated increased business rate income for 

2019/20 is £64,580 rather than £215,119 previously reported on 7 July 2020, a 
difference of £150,539.  The overall transfer to the Council Tax Payers Reserve will 
be reduced by £150,539 to £1,086,421 for 2019/20 instead of the £1,236,960 
reported on 7 July 2020. 

 
6.0  CIL Reserve  
 
6.1  The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) balance as at 30 June 2020 is 

£4,251,435. The Council is committed to using this reserve for priority schemes and 
to distribute to parishes. The movements in 2020/21 can be seen in the table below.  
A further report in relation to CIL is included on the Cabinet Agenda in September 
2020 and once approved these movement will be included at Quarter 2.  

  

Page 33



 

 Amount (£) 

2020/21 Opening Balance 4,301,881 

Add in-year income 36,221 

Less in-year payments to parishes (86,667) 

Closing Balance Quarter 1 4,251,435 

 
7.0 Other Matters - Grants: 
 
7.1  The following grants and contributions have been allocated to the Council and paid 

into the One Off Fund Reserve since the budget was approved in February 2020. 
 

Description Amount 

£ 

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG) – Flexible Homelessness Support Grant and 
Homelessness Reduction Grant 

87,865 

Department of Works and Pensions (DWP) – New Burden Grant  16,001 

Total 103,866 

 
8.0     Sensitivity Analysis 
 
8.1 Further to the recommendations for changes to the budget in this Quarter 1 

monitoring report, this report also highlights where there are areas of budget 
uncertainty.  This can give Members early warning of possible issues in the future.  
All areas will be monitored closely and an update provided for Quarter 2 as at this 
time there is too much uncertainty surrounding these figures to include them as an 
adjustment to the budget.  Annex ‘A’ attached details the sensitivity analysis. 

 
9.0 Reserve Funding 

 
9.1 The table below shows the position on the revenue reserves at Quarter 1 if the 

recommendations are approved in this Cabinet report.  Further information is also 
described below. 

 

Reserve Fund  

 Balance at 
1 April 
2020                      

£  

Q1 
Movement 
(from) / to 
Reserves 

£  

 Balance at 
30 June 2020                      

£  

General Fund 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 

Council Taxpayers Reserve 6,460,693 (600,000) 5,860,693 

Grants Fund 94,434 (48,700) 45,734 

Economic Development Fund 989,276 (397,710) 591,566 

One Off Fund 1,273,920 (791,774) 482,146 

Computer Fund 1,287,718 (497,556) 790,162 

Repairs & Renewal Fund 947,066 - 947,066 

Community Safety Partnership 12,544 - 12,544 

Local Plan Reserve 61,237 34,033 95,270 

Make a Difference Fund 6,000 125,000 131,000 

Page 34



Reserve Fund  

 Balance at 
1 April 
2020                      

£  

Q1 
Movement 
(from) / to 
Reserves 

£  

 Balance at 
30 June 2020                      

£  

Community Housing Fund 98,873 (1,043) 97,830 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
5% Admin Reserve 

38,026 - 38,026 

Income Generating Fund 69,178 100,000 169,178 

Total 13,338,965 (2,077,750) 11,261,215 

 
9.2 Economic Development Fund - In Quarter 1, the opening balance was £989,276 

with the net movement of £397,710; split as £237,922 capital and £159,788 
revenue. In line with the capital programme budget further approval is required at 
Q1 for capital expenditure and this is detailed in a separate report on the agenda.  
The net movement of £397,710 includes brought forward balances of £244,023, 
expenditure that has been allocated from the Economic Development Fund in 
previous Cabinet reports, totalling £147,186 as detailed in the table below and also 
£6,501 of new funding detailed in paragraph 9.3.  The balance of the Economic 
Development Fund at year end is estimated at Quarter 1 to be £591,566. 

 

Expenditure in 2020/21 from the Economic Development Fund Amount £ 

Skills Village (Capital £84,000, Revenue £41,000) 125,000 

Support for Business Networks 12,500 

Networking events and promotion 6,686 

Footfall Counters 3,000 

Total expenditure already approved at Q1 147,186 

 
9.3  The Economic Development Fund requests two changes to the Footfall Counter 

scheme following a redesign, the first is that £5,000 of the £10,000 original capital 
budget is moved from Capital to Revenue and secondly that additional revenue of 
£51,501 is allocated to the existing £3,499 revenue budget to bring the total budget 
for this project to £65,000. The Economic Development fund requests that £45,000 
of this is immediately rolled forward to future years - £15,000 a year for the next 
three years. 

 
9.4      The Economic Development fund has allocated a further £110,250 to future years’ 

allocations; £45,000 (as mentioned in paragraph 9.3 above) for the footfall counters 
for 2021/22, 2022/23 and 2023/24 rolled forward at Quarter 1 and £65,250 rolled 
forward from 2019/20 to 2021/22 for the Central Northallerton Scheme.  This 
currently leaves £481,316 remaining for future projects. 

 
9.5 Council Tax Payers Reserve – The initial balance previously reported in the 

2019/20 Revenue Outturn and Position on Reserves dated 7 July 2020 of 
£6,611,232 has changed by £150,539 to £6,460,693 due to the revised outturn 
position for 2019/20 and the adjustment required for the Business Rate Pilot 
information detailed in paragraph 5.2. £400,000 has been transferred to the One Off 
Fund as detailed in the financial strategy approved in February 2020. The financial 
strategy also allocated £200,000 to the Income Generating Fund, however it is now 
requested that the amount of £100,000 is transferred to the Income Generating 
Fund and £100,000 is to be transferred to the One Off Fund to support the Vehicle/ 
Company Structure.  

Page 35



 
9.6 One Off Fund - In Quarter 1, the initial balance is £1,273,920, a transfer from the 

Council Tax Payers Reserve of £400,000 is to be made in line with the Financial 
Strategy.  A further £100,000 is requested to be transferred from the Council Tax 
Payers Reserve that was originally to be transferred to the Income Generating Fund 
for additional support in the One Off fund for the Vehicle/Company Structure advice. 
Additional income of £103,866 was received which can be seen in paragraph 7.1 
above.  £73,790 is to be transferred from the Revenue Budget in relation to the 
funding previously provided to Northallerton Leisure Centre and £125,000 has been 
transferred to the Make a Difference Reserve for 2020/21.  £206,577 is to be 
returned to the Fund from previously allocated projects, this includes £150,000 from 
the Future High Street project as it has now been submitted to Government, 
£50,000 for the 80 year event for RAF Leeming, £5,735 for the Communications 
Consultant and £842 for Environmental Health expenditure.  Expenditure that has 
been allocated from the One Off Fund in previous Cabinet reports rolled forward 
from 2019/20 totals £1,044,267.  Further expenditure to be allocated from the One 
Off Fund is detailed in the table below at £506,740, this includes a request to use 
£250,000 for further Professional advice relating to the Vehicle/Company Structure.  
The balance on the One Off Fund at Quarter 1 is £482,146. 

 

Expenditure in 2020/21 from the One Off Fund Amount 

Operation Panther – Environmental Health 20,000 

Holiday Pay – legal requirement for additional hours 74,030 

Commission for Unitary Development 25,000 

Development Management System - Consultant Support costs 23,000 

Citizens Advice – EU Settlement Scheme 3,500 

Housing – Funding for post until November 2020 11,110 

Flexible Homelessness Support – allocation of grant 52,480 

Homelessness Reduction Grant - expended on staff 12,810 

Development Management Self Build Register grant  34,810 

Vehicle Company/Structure - Professional advice 250,000 

Total expenditure recommended for approval at Q1 506,740 

 
9.7 At Quarter 1, is it recommended to Cabinet and Council that the allocation from the 

One-off Fund at £506,740 is approved. 
 
9.8 It should be noted that a total of £350,000 has been allocated from the One-Off fund 

(£100,000 2019/20, £250,000 2020/21) to the Vehicle Company/Structure.  
Approval is sought in this report for the professional costs to be expended for legal, 
financial and operational advice in relation to the Vehicle Company/Structure set up 
as detailed in the VAT Partial Exemption report that was approved by Cabinet on 7 
July 2020.  Updates on spend will be reported in the quarterly revenue monitoring 
reports to Cabinet. 

 
9.9 Computer Fund – in accordance with the Financial Strategy approved by Council in 

February 2020, the reserve is being used to fund ICT projects to ensure technology 
is maintained to an acceptable standard in the current ICT market environment. 
This includes £40,000 of revenue expenditure, £108,830 of 2020/21 capital 
expenditure and a brought forward amount of capital expenditure from 2019/20 of 
£348,726.  

 

Page 36



9.10 Repairs & Renewal Fund – The reserve is being used to fund Repairs and Renewal 
projects to ensure that the Council’s assets are maintained to an acceptable 
standard.  

 
9.11 Local Plan Reserve – £59,710 has been transferred from the income received from 

planning applications to the Local Plan.  Expenditure allocated in quarter 1 totals 
£25,677 leaving a balance of £95,270.  If insufficient funding exists within the year 
to support the local plan then funding in the first instance will be utilised form the 
one off fund to be replaced in future years from income received from planning 
applications. 

 
9.12 Make a Difference Fund – the opening balance in Quarter 1 of £6,000 relates to two 

projects brought forward from the 2019/20 programme which will be completed in 
2020/21.  £125,000 has been transferred from the One Off Fund for the 2020/21 
scheme. Successful awards will invest in worthy local community projects which 
help improve life in neighbourhoods and which support the work of the voluntary 
sector and will be expended by 31 March 2020. 

 
9.13 Income Generating Fund: £100,000 has been transferred from the Council Tax 

Payers reserve to financially support projects in the initial stages of development 
which will generate revenue income to contribute to the future funding of the 
Council.  This differs to the financial strategy of transferring £200,000 as it is 
estimated that less funding will be required to support income generating projects 
where the current requirement is for the Company Structure which will be funded by 
the One Off Fund as detailed in paragraph 9.6.   

 
9.14 Other Reserves - There is a movement on the grants reserve to allocate funds of 

£48,700. The grant fund provides assistance to community groups to benefit the 
district as a whole. 

 
10.0 VAT Reduced Rate – COVID-19 implications 

 
10.1 On 8 July 2020, the government announced a temporary 5% reduced rate of VAT 

for certain supplies of hospitality, hotel accommodation and admission to certain 
attractions in light of COVID-19. This cut in the VAT standard rate of 20% was 
effective from 15 July 2020 to 12 January 2021. The financial impact for Hambleton 
District Council is estimated to be low and it will mainly affect increased cost for 
hotel accommodations which is likely to be minimal at this time due to most external 
events being run virtually.  

 
11.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
11.1 The monitoring of the financial budget throughout the year and reporting the 

financial year end position assists in ensuring the Council’s service requirements 
are met and contributes to the achievement of the priorities set out in the Council 
Plan. 

 
12.0 Risk Assessment 
 
12.1 There are no major risks associated with this report.   
 
  

Page 37



13.0 Financial Implications 
 
13.1 The financial implications are dealt with in the body of the report. 

 
14.0 Legal Implications 
 
14.1 It is a legal requirement under s25 of the Local Government Act 2003 to set a 

balance budget and monitor the financial position throughout the year. 
 
15.0 Equality and Diversity Issues 
 
15.1 Equality and Diversity Issues have been considered however there are no issues 

associated with this report. 
 
16.0 Recommendations 
 
16.1 That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council: 
 

(1) the budget remains at £9,269,670 as detailed in paragraph 3.2 of the report; 
 

(2) the revised 2019/20 Revenue Outturn and position on the Council Tax 
Payers Reserve is a reduction of £150,539 to £1,086,421 detailed at 
paragraph 5.2 of the report; 

 

(3) the total allocation of the Economic Development fund of £507,960, leaving 
£481,316 at paragraph 9.4 of the report; 
 

(4) the allocation from the Council Tax Payers Reserve at paragraph 9.5 of the 
report of £600,000; 

 
(5) the transfer of £125,000 from the One Off Fund to Make a Difference Fund at 

paragraph 9.6 of the report; 
 
(6) the allocation from the One Off fund at paragraph 9.7 of the report of 

£506,740; and 
 
(7) the expenditure of £350,000 to support the professional advice fees for the 

Vehicle/Company Structure at paragraph 9.8 of the report. 
 
 

Louise Branford-White 
Director of Finance and Commercial (s 151 officer) 
 
 
Background papers: Budget Monitoring Q1 working papers 
 
Author ref: SC 
 
Contact: Saskia Calton – Corporate Finance Manager 
  Direct Line: 01609 767226 
 
  

Page 38



Annex A 
 

Budget 2020/21 Qtr 1 Sensitivity Analysis – potential savings / costs 
 

 

Council 
Directorates 

Area of Sensitivity Commentary 

Economy and 
Planning 

Planning Fees This will continue to be closely 
monitored due to the estimated income 
being so high, and the effects of 
COVID-19 unknown. 

 Workspace Management Income This will continue to be closely 
monitored. 

Environment Operational Services – Fuel Prices This is being kept under review and 
any significant changes will be 
reported. 

 Kerbside Recycling Contract Basket price changes will affect the 
budget, this will be closely monitored 
throughout the year. 

Finance & 
Commercial 

Housing Benefit Payments Whilst any increase in Housing Benefit 
payments will be partly offset by 
subsidy, the budget is so large that a 
small increase in percentage terms 
can lead to a large amount in 
monetary terms. 

Council Wide COVID-19 The effects of COVID-19 is 
widespread throughout the Council 
however the full effects are unknown 
but are closely monitored and monthly 
returns are completed to the Ministry 
of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government 

 
 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 8 September 2020  
 
Subject: Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Funding Priorities 
 
Portfolio Holder: Economy and Planning 
 Councillor D A Webster 
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and background 
 
1.1 The Council must identify how it intends to use Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

monies collected to deliver strategic infrastructure.  The purpose of this report is to 
consider the prioritisation of the schemes to be funded either entirely, or in part, 
through CIL. This report identifies options and seeks Cabinet’s approval to 
undertake the recommended approach. CIL is a levy on development which the 
Council has collected, where the funds are used to provide infrastructure. 
 

1.2 The introduction of the Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 
2) Regulations 2019) came into force on 1 September 2019. The amendments 
include the removal of the existing Regulation 123 List which identifies projects that 
may be suitable for CIL funding and its replacement by an annual Infrastructure 
Funding Statement (IFS). This sets out the proposed infrastructure projects and 
priorities that the Council intends to fund through the collection of CIL. 

 
1.3 After taking into account monies allocated to Parish and Town Councils, totalling 

£605,802.46 since 2015/2016, the current CIL monies available to spend on 
infrastructure amounts to £4,229,615. Included in this sum is £2 million that is 
committed to be spent on the proposed North Northallerton primary school. 
 

1.4 As such there is currently a total of £2,229,615 CIL monies available to be spent on 
infrastructure. Approximately £160,000 is required from this to cover the payments 
that will become due to Brompton and Northallerton Town Councils in respect of the 
North Northallerton development. 

 
1.5 Before considering the prioritisation of the schemes, it is appropriate to review the 

existing Regulation 123 list to ensure that the most appropriate infrastructure 
requirements for CIL funding are included. This is set out in annex 1 (Existing 
Regulation 123 List-Intended Infrastructure). 

 
          North Northallerton School Development  

 
1.6 The North Northallerton development includes outline planning permission for a new 

primary school. The land, through the accompanying Section 106 Agreement, is to 
be transferred to the County Council and its use protected for a school until 
December 2023. The Council has committed £2 million from the previous CIL 
Regulation 123 List for the construction of the school. It is important to continue to 

Page 41

Agenda Item 5



prioritise this for CIL funding because it is a commitment made by the Council for 
the proper planning of the area and without it there would be insufficient funds to 
build the school. The anticipated programme includes handover of the land in July 
2020, work to commence in June/July 2021, completion in June 2022 and opening 
in September 2022. This money could be drawn down by the County Council at any 
time during this period. 
 

1.7 Other priorities in the current CIL Regulation 123 List include the North Northallerton 
Link Road and Bridge and Northallerton Sports Village. The North Northallerton Link 
Road and Bridge is to be fully funded through direct provision of land and 
infrastructure by the North Northallerton Development Consortium and the funding 
from the Local Enterprise Partnership. The bridge is due to be completed by 
October 2021. 

  
  The Northallerton Sports Village 
 
1.8 There is currently a planning application under consideration and a bid has been 

made for European Regional Development Funding (ERDF). Success with ERDF 
would enable the Council to deliver informal recreation (trails, allotments, wetland 
area, tree planting and landscaping to increase biodiversity), a full size 3G artificial 
pitch, grass pitches and changing facilities. £1 million will be funded by the ERDF (if 
successful) and by Section 106 legal agreements. Phase 2 would deliver similar to 
Sowerby Sports Village (excluding rugby pitch) costing £1.2-£1.4 million. Access to 
funding from the FA would be up to £500,000, so there would be an estimated 
shortfall of £600,000-£800,000.  It is envisaged that this project could be delivered 
by March 2023. 

 
Proposed New Priorities 
 

1.9 Officers have assessed the existing Regulation 123 List projects and those to be 
taken forward are proposed to be transferred to a draft Infrastructure Funding 
Statement (IFS), including North Northallerton Sports Village as set out above. The 
draft IFS is attached at Annex 2 which then sets out potential schemes in Annex 3 
(Infrastructure Delivery Schedule). New additional local infrastructure schemes have 
been added to include Thirsk and Sowerby Sports Village and ‘Leisure Centre 
projects’ as a result of the findings, conclusions and recommendations set out in the 
Council’s ‘Sports Facilities Strategy 2017-2035’. 

 
          Thirsk & Sowerby Leisure Centre 

 
1.10 The Council has undertaken an options feasibility study for improving the centre and 

a preferred option was chosen. A cost confidence study was undertaken and a 
preferred option was approved by Cabinet in July 2020. The costs for an improved 
centre would be approximately £3.8m and planning permission will be sought at the 
next stage of cost certainty. 
 
Bedale Leisure Centre  

 
1.11 The Council currently has a cost for improving the health and fitness offer at the 

centre, which is also the subject of a Cabinet report on this agenda, of 
approximately £314,000. 

 

Page 42



Thirsk and Sowerby Sports Village  
 

1.12 The Council has undertaken remediation, installed a sustainable urban drainage 
system and created 18 allotment gardens, a car park, a 1km fitness trail, grass 
pitches and significant landscaping to increase biodiversity. This part of the site is 
open and is well used for recreation. The Council has also constructed the main 
vehicular and pedestrian access and completed temporary car parking. This leaves 
the construction of a full size 3G pitch, full size grass rugby pitch (floodlit) and 
changing facilities. Future plans also include a “learn to ride facility”, storage for 
adapted bikes for people with disabilities and a trackside shelter. It is anticipated 
that this would be delivered in 2020, subject to successful funding bids. There is a 
shortfall of funding of approximately £1.5m for the next phase. It is envisaged that 
funding from sports governing bodies could be secured (potentially up to £600,000 
so shortfall is estimated at £900,000) and that this project would be delivered by 
March 2022. 
 
Education – Section 106 Agreements 
 

1.13 The draft IFS does not include any education schemes aside from the North 
Northallerton Primary School. The Regulation 123 List contained provision of 
primary school places required as a result of new development, however these 
have not been included in the IFS as it is proposed that education contributions be 
collected through Section 106 agreements. North Yorkshire County Council adopted 
a new policy on developer contributions for education in July 2020 which will 
request Section 106 contributions for education across the County. 
 
Prioritisation 

 
1.14 The options for prioritisation and allocation of monies are set out in Annex 4. It is 

proposed that the key strategic infrastructure schemes in relation to the planned 
growth of the District in terms of need, timing and relevance to the Development 
Plan and wider Council published priorities are prioritised and CIL monies allocated 
accordingly. The schemes identified within the Infrastructure Delivery Schedule at 
Annex 3 all have strategic importance and contribute towards delivering housing, 
supporting economic growth and local communities and protecting the environment. 
 

1.15 It is proposed that the principles by which the Council will allocate CIL receipts to 
infrastructure are; strategic and local priority, risk of not allocating funding, 
deliverability, including planning permission, match funding and inclusion in the 
Council’s Local Plan. In the light of COVID-19 there is a strong drive by central 
government to improve the health of all communities and Hambleton District Council 
is committed to fully supporting the well-being of our residents. It is therefore 
proposed that CIL funding is allocated as a priority to supporting the development of 
sports, recreation and leisure facilities. 

 
1.16 It is proposed that the priority schemes for 2020/2021 are (in priority order):  

 

(1) A new Primary School in North Northallerton (£2 million already allocated) 
(2) Thirsk and Sowerby Leisure Centre  
(3)  Sowerby Sports Village  
(4) The Northallerton Sports Village at North Northallerton 
(5) Bedale Leisure Centre 

Page 43



1.17 It is considered that the above projects are of strategic and local priority as they are 
set out as allocations in the Council’s Local Plan or contribute to the broader aims 
and objectives of the delivery of the plan as well as meeting the aims and objectives 
of the Council Plan. All the projects will contribute to meeting the need for improved 
infrastructure as a consequence of new development. The priority projects are 
largely health and wellbeing projects which clearly reflect the Council’s priorities to 
the enhance health and wellbeing of communities. The above schemes are key 
projects for the Council to implement to seek to achieve its aims of increasing 
participation in physical activity. 
 

1.18 All the projects are subject to detailed timelines or project plans demonstrating that 
the projects are feasible. It is evident that some of these schemes will already have 
Section 106 contributions or other funding secured collected, and because there 
remains a funding gap the remainder could be funded through CIL. The projects 
have or are likely to achieve additional funding as well as relevant planning 
permissions to ensure deliverability. 
 

1.19 It should be noted that £210,000 has already been earmarked for a sports hall at 
Stokesley school (IDS ref. no. 38) and £200,000 (IDS ref. no. 37) for a 3G pitch at 
Stokesley. 
 

1.20 It is considered appropriate to prioritise Thirsk and Sowerby Leisure Centre given 
the benefit and scale of the scheme and the risks of service disruption and closure, 
due to the condition of the centre, should significant investment not be forthcoming. 
Subsequently priority order has been determined upon existing funding in place, 
likely future funding arrangements, project implementation and deliverability 
progress, land transfer timings and planning permissions granted. 
   

1.21 It is recommended that all CIL monies are pooled to be retained and allocated 
based on the prioritised schemes and that the actual amounts to be allocated to the 
priority schemes, in relation to CIL receipts held at present, is as follows: 
 
(1) Thirsk and Sowerby Leisure Centre-50% of total CIL funds available - 

£1,034,860  
(2) Sowerby Sports Village- 25% of total CIL funds available-£517,403 
(3) The Northallerton Sports Village at North Northallerton-15% of total CIL funds 

available-£310,442 
(4) Bedale Leisure Centre-10% of total CIL funds available-£206,961 

 
1.22 CIL will continue to be collected and will be available to distribute to priority 

schemes.  It is proposed that further CIL collected up to the 31st March 2021 be 
paid to the priority schemes identified in paragraph 1.21. 

 
2.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 

2.1 CIL supports the provision of key projects identified in the Council Plan under the 
priority of ‘Enhancing Health and Wellbeing’. Provision of improved community 
facilities also enhances vibrancy of, and the attractiveness of the area to residents 
and visitors, ‘Providing a Special Place to Live’ and helping to ‘Drive Economic 
Vitality’.  The Council plays a major role in improving public health and wellbeing, 
particularly in respect of prevention, and the continued improvement of facilities will 
help to improve and promote the physical and mental activity needs of the local 
population. 

Page 44



 
3.0 Risk Assessment  
 
3.1 Risk in approving the recommendations: 

Risk Implication Gross 
Prob 

Gross 
Imp 

Gross 
Total 

Preventative 
action 

Net 
Prob 

Net 
Imp 

Net 
Total 

Delivery partners 
disagree with the 
infrastructure 
projects identified 
and also their 
priority. 

Difficulty in 
relationships with 
delivery partners  

 
4 

 
4 

 
12 

Engage with delivery 
partners on the 
assessment of 
further and future 
priority schemes 

 
3 

 
3 

 
9 

 
3.2 The key risk is in not approving the recommendation(s) as shown below:-  

Risk Implication Gross 
Prob 

Gross 
Imp 

Gross 
Total 

Preventative 
action 

Net 
Prob 

Net 
Imp 

Net 
Total 

Infrastructure not 
provided to support 
development or its 
delivery is 
significantly 
delayed.  

Delay in delivery of 
key strategic 
infrastructure will 
result in Council 
priorities not being 
met, monies would 
not be spent to 
support development 
and the provision of 
local infrastructure  
for communities not 
provided 

 
4 

 
5 

 
20 

Agree 
recommendation 

 
2 

 
2 

 
4 

Prob = Probability, Imp = Impact, Score range is Low = 1, High = 5 
 
3.3 Overall the risk of agreeing with the recommendations outweighs the risks of not 

agreeing them and is considered acceptable. 
 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications to the Council by following the recommendation 

of this report. 
 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 The Council will need to follow the Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) 

(England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019) as amended to ensure that the proper legal 
procedures continue to be adhered to in implementing the Charging Schedule. The 
arrangements for the management of CIL monies may require legal mechanisms 
between the Council and any delivery partners. 

 
6.0 Equality/Diversity Issues 
 
6.1 Equality and Diversity Issues have been considered however there are no issues 

associated with this report. 
 
  

Page 45



7.0 Recommendations 
 
7.1 That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council:  

 
(1) the Draft Infrastructure Funding Statement set out in Annex’s 2 and 3 of the 

report, to replace the Regulation 123 list; 
 
(2) the recommended prioritisation of schemes for 2020/2021, in accordance 

with paragraph 1.16 of the report; and 
 
(3) that £2,069,666 of CIL funding be committed to the priority schemes, in 

accordance with paragraph 1.21 of the report; 
 
(4) that further CIL received up to the 31st March 2021 be committed to the 

priority schemes in accord with the percentages set out in paragraph 1.21 of 
the report. 

 
Helen Kemp 
Director of Planning and Economy 
 
Background papers: Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 2) 

Regulations 2019)  
 National Planning Policy Framework 
 

Author ref: AR 
 
Contact: Ann Rawlinson 
  Development Manager (Enforcement and Support) 
  01609 767123 
 
 

Page 46



Annex 1 

Existing Regulation 123 list-Intended Infrastructure 

Type Location Specific Infrastructure Requirement 

Road Network and 
Transport 

Northallerton North Northallerton Link Road (inc Bridge)  

 Northallerton  Northallerton Public transport Interchange 

 Easingwold Easingwold Footpath and Cycleway Network 

 Stokesley Stokesley Footpath and Cycleway Network 

 Thirsk Thirsk Public Transport Interchange 

 District – Wide Junction improvements required to mitigate the cumulative  
impact of housing and employment allocations  

Education Northallerton Provision of new primary school in Northallerton  

 District - Wide  Provision of additional primary school places required as a  
result of new development 

Green 
Infrastructure 

Northallerton Northallerton Sports Village 

 Northallerton Northallerton Town Park 

Healthcare District-wide Healthcare facilities-Additional GP’s 

 

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Annex 2 

Hambleton District Council 

Draft Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS) 

2019/2020 

Changes to the Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 2) Regulations 
2019) http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/9780111187449 has:  

 Removed the Regulation 123 list 
 Removed the restriction on pooling more than 5 planning obligations towards a single 

piece of infrastructure 
 Now allows Council’s to choose to pool funding from different routes to fund the 

same infrastructure if Council’s set out in their IFS which infrastructure they intend to 
fund through CIL and Section 106 agreements.  

This Statement identifies the infrastructure projects or types of infrastructure which 

Hambleton District Council intends will be, or may be, wholly or partly funded by the 

Community Infrastructure Levy; whilst indicating other sources of funding that can be pooled 

to fund the same infrastructure projects shown. This is set out in the Councils Infrastructure 

Delivery Statement - Infrastructure Delivery Schedule (Appendix 3). In addition it should be 

noted that the Council are legally committed to allocating £2 million to the North 

Northallerton Primary School, currently subject of a planning application currently under 

consideration with North Yorkshire County Council.  

It should be noted that the priority for the flood risk schemes is proposed to be amended to 

‘important’ as they are in areas where development is planned through the local plan, but 

they are not necessary for development to go ahead.  Two of the schemes are also intended 

to be amended to ‘desirable’ as they are either not near to planned development or are not 

specific about where they are located. 

It also should be noted that ‘Leisure Centre Projects’ has been added to the Councils 

Infrastructure Delivery Statement Infrastructure Delivery Schedule as a result of the findings, 

conclusions and recommendations set out in the ‘Sports Facilities Strategy 2017- 2035’ set 

out below: 

file:///C:/Users/arawlinson/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/IE/0GU1SC7Q/Ha

mbleton_District_Council___Sports_Facilities_Strategy_Final___02.08.17.pdf 

Funding for the delivery of infrastructure will be sought by the Council from multiple sources 
over a number of years. Developer contributions can be provided in several ways:  

• Through planning conditions – to make development acceptable that would otherwise be 
unacceptable.  

• Through planning obligations in the form of Section 106 agreements – where it is not 
possible to address unacceptable impacts through a planning condition.  

• Through the Community Infrastructure (CIL) – a fixed charge levied on new development to 
fund infrastructure.  

 It is generally expected that Developer Contributions: CIL and Planning Obligation (Section 
106) will only provide a contribution to funding the infrastructure costs. Alongside this funding 
there are mainstream sources of funding available to support delivery including sources of 

Page 49

file:///C:/Users/arawlinson/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/IE/0GU1SC7Q/Hambleton_District_Council___Sports_Facilities_Strategy_Final___02.08.17.pdf
file:///C:/Users/arawlinson/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/IE/0GU1SC7Q/Hambleton_District_Council___Sports_Facilities_Strategy_Final___02.08.17.pdf


funding for education, transport, health and utilities infrastructure. Funding can also be used 
from the Town and Parish Councils and Hambleton Town/Parish CIL pots.  

Planning Obligations Planning obligations assist in mitigating the impact of unacceptable 
development to make it acceptable in planning terms. Planning obligations may only 
constitute a reason for granting planning permission if they meet the tests that they are 
necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. They must be:  

• necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;  

• directly related to the development; and  

• fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.  

These tests are set out as statutory tests in Regulation 122 (as amended by the 2011 and 
2019 Regulations) and as policy tests in the National Planning Policy Framework  

It is not possible to provide a priority list of planning obligations that may be sought, by 
reason that the relative importance of an obligation will be dependent on the development 
proposal being considered. Planning obligations may be required by specific developments. 
These may include:  

 Education contributions; 

 new schools;  

 primary healthcare;  

 strategic highway and transportation improvements 

 Open Space contributions in new housing developments (including amenity green 
space, provision for children/young people; parks and gardens, allotments, and 
playing pitches) will continue to be collected by S106.  

Affordable Housing obligations will be secured through Section 106 mechanism, without 
funding from CIL. This is in accordance with the CIL Regulations.  

This is a ‘living’ document and will be the subject of on-going update and monitoring 
during 2020.  

The order of the projects within the Infrastructure Delivery Plan Schedule does not 
imply any order of preference. 

 

 

Page 50



Appendix 1: Infrastructure Delivery Schedule
1.1 This Infrastructure Delivery Schedule (IDS) has been prepared based upon the basis of the

knowledge available at its time of publication. The IDS provides a collated schedule of all
potential infrastructure projects and an estimate of the potential costs for future infrastructure.

1.2 The schedule in some instances can only provide an estimate of the potential costs for future
infrastructure. The proportion of funding to be met from those parties who have an interest in
the delivery of the infrastructure will be updated in the IDS as the evidence on the infrastructure
is finalised.

1.3 There may be a range of potential sources of funding for infrastructure within the IDS including
use of Section 106 agreements, Section 278 agreements and use of Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL); these are all shown as a ‘developer’ contribution.

1.4 Sources of funding that are additional to potential developer contributions may also become
available to support delivery of the infrastructure included in the IDS. This could take the form
of grants and loans via the public sector and other private investment. Projects included within
the IDS cover a wide range of issues. Not all projects will be required over the life of the Local
Plan and at this stage the majority of projects are not committed or formally required.

Table 5 Infrastructure Delivery Schedule - Transport

Possible
Funding Source

Potential
Delivery Lead

Phase
(years)

PriorityAreaProjectIDS
Ref.

NYCCNYCC5 to 10Important
£600,000

NorthallertonJunction improvements: A167
corridor through Northallerton
from Thirsk Road (A168) to
Yafforth Road (B6271)

1.

NYCCNYCC5 to 10Important
£100,000

NorthallertonJunction improvements: B1333/
Romanby Road Junction

2.

NYCCNYCC10 to 15DesirableEasingwoldRaskelf Road/ Knott lane
priority junction

3.

NYCCNYCC10 to 15DesirableEasingwoldThirsk Road/ Church Hill/ Long
Street/ Raskelf Road –
mini-roundabout

4.

NYCCNYCC10 to 15DesirableStokesleyHelmsley Road/ High Street/
Springfield/ access to the Co-op
– roundabout

5.

NYCCNYCC10 to 15DesirableStokesleyThirsk Road/ West End/
Westlands junction

6.

63Infrastructure Delivery Plan March 2020 - Hambleton District Council

Annex 3

Page 51



Possible
Funding Source

Potential
Delivery Lead

Phase
(years)

PriorityAreaProjectIDS
Ref.

Highways
England/ NYCC

NYCC10 to 15DesirableDistrict wideUpgrade the A168/ A19 corridor7.

NYCCNYCC10 to 15DesirableThirsk (Topcliffe)A167 road safety improvements
from Topcliffe to the A61

8.

NYCCNYCC10 to 15DesirableNorthallertonRoad safety improvements
along the A684

9.

Developer/
Highways
England/ NYCC

NYCC/
Developer

10 to 15DesirableEasingwold
(Shipton by
Benningborough)

A19 Shipton by
Benningborough bypass

10.

NYCC/
Developer

NYCC/
Developer

TBDImportantNorthallertonHighway, pedestrian and
cycleway improvements for site
NOR 1

11.

NYCC/
Developer

NYCC/
Developer

TBDImportantThirskHighway, pedestrian and
cycleway improvements for site
TIS 1

12.

NYCC/
Developer

NYCC/
Developer

TBDImportantStokesleyHighway, pedestrian and
cycleway improvements for site
STK 1

13.

NYCC/
Developer

NYCC/
Developer

TBDImportantEasingwoldHighway, pedestrian and
cycleway improvements for site
EAS 1

14.

Rail North/ DoTNYCC/ Rail
North/ DoT

TBDDesirableDistrict wideMaximising opportunities of
HS2

15.

Rail North/ DoTNYCC/ Rail
North/ DoT

TBDDesirableDistrict wideDevelopment of Parkway
stations and/ or replace existing
station facilities

16.

Rail North/ DoTNYCC/ Rail
North/ DoT

TBDDesirableDistrict wideUpgrade of East Coast Main
Line & Trans Pennine networks

17.

NYCC/ Rail
North/ DoT

NYCC/ Rail
North/ DoT

TBDDesirableDistrict wideNew rail link Ripon to
Northallerton

18.

Infrastructure Delivery Plan March 2020 - Hambleton District Council64
Page 52



Table 6 Infrastructure Delivery Schedule - Health

Possible
funding source

Potential
delivery lead

Phase
(years)

PriorityAreaProjectIDS
Ref.

CCG/ NHS
England

CCG5 to 10ImportantEasingwoldA new or upgraded healthcare
facility in Easingwold

19.

CCG/ NHS
England

CCG5 to 10ImportantThirskExpansion of the medical
centres in Thirsk

20.

CCG/ NHS
England

CCG5 to 10ImportantStokesleyExpansion of the medical
centres in Stokesley

21.

HDC/ NYCC/
Developer

HDC1 to 15DesirableDistrict wideCapacity improvement and
maintenance

22.

Table 7 Infrastructure Delivery Schedule - Education

Possible
funding source

Potential
delivery lead

Phase
(years)

PriorityAreaProjectIDS
Ref.

DeveloperNYCC/
Developer

1 to 10Critical
£4,647,097

District wideAdditional primary schools
infrastructure requirement

23.

DeveloperNYCC/
Developer

1 to 10Critical
£5,955,048

District wideAdditional secondary schools
infrastructure requirement

24.

DeveloperNYCC/
Developer

1 to 5SecuredNorthallertonNew primary school at
Northern Gateway

25.

HDC/ NYCC/
Developer

HDC/ NYCC1 to 15DesirableDistrict wideCapacity improvement and
maintenance

26.

Table 8 Infrastructure Delivery Schedule - Green Infrastructure

Possible
funding source

Potential
delivery lead

Phase
(years)

PriorityAreaProjectIDS
Ref.

HDC/ NYCC/
Developer

HDC10 to 15DesirableNorthallertonNorthallerton Town Park27.

NYCC/ Sustran/
Developer

NYCC/
Sustran

5 to 10Secured
£56,000,
Desirable
£688,433

StokesleyStokesley to Great Ayton
Station Cycleway

28.

HDC/ NYCC/
Developer

HDC1 to 15DesirableDistrict wideCapacity improvement and
maintenance

29.

65Infrastructure Delivery Plan March 2020 - Hambleton District Council
Page 53



Table 9 Infrastructure Delivery Schedule - Gas Infrastructure

Possible
funding source

Potential
delivery lead

Phase
(years)

PriorityAreaProjectIDS
Ref.

Northern Gas
Network/
Developer

Northern Gas
Network

1 to 10ImportantThirskLocal gas network capacity
reinforcement in Thirsk

30.

Northern Gas
Network/
Developer

Northern Gas
Network

1 to 10ImportantThirskLocal gas network capacity
reinforcement in Carlton Miniott

31.

Northern Gas
Network/
Developer

Northern Gas
Network

1 to 10ImportantThirskLocal gas network capacity
reinforcement in South
Kilvington

32.

Table 10 Infrastructure Delivery Schedule - Telecommunications

Possible
funding source

Potential
delivery lead

Phase
(years)

PriorityAreaProjectIDS
Ref.

HDC/ NYCC/
Developer

Superfast
North
Yorkshire

1 to 15DesirableDistrict wideSuperfast Yorkshire phase 3
broadband roll-out and further
extended coverage

33.

Table 11 Infrastructure Delivery Schedule - Waste Services

Possible
funding source

Potential
delivery lead

Phase
(years)

PriorityAreaProjectIDS
Ref.

HDC/ NYCC/
Developer

HDC1 to 15DesirableDistrict wideSupport collection of
non-recyclable household
waste and recyclable waste

34.

Table 12 Infrastructure Delivery Schedule - Sport

Possible
funding source

Potential
delivery lead

Phase
(years)

PriorityAreaProjectIDS
Ref.

HDC/ Developer/
Sport England/
Football
foundation/ RFU/
ERDF

HDC1 to 5Secured
£2,000,000

Important
£2,500,000

Thirsk (Sowerby)Sports village including full size
3G pitch

35.

Infrastructure Delivery Plan March 2020 - Hambleton District Council66
Page 54



Possible
funding source

Potential
delivery lead

Phase
(years)

PriorityAreaProjectIDS
Ref.

HDC/ Developer/
Sport England/
Football
foundation/ RFU/
ERDF

HDC1 to 5Secured
£5000,000

Important
£3,000,000

NorthallertonSports village including full size
3G pitch

36.

Developer/
Football
foundation/
NYCC

County FA1 to 5Important
£750,000

StokesleyFull size 3G pitch37.

Stokesley
School/ HDC/
Sports England/
NYCC

Stokesley
School

5 to 10Important
£2,215,000

StokesleyReplace School Sports Hall38.

HDC/ Sports
England/
Developer

HDC5 to 10DesirableStokesleyRefurbish Swimming Pool39.

HDC/ Sports
England/ Thirsk
School/ NYCC

Thirsk School
and Sixth Form

5 to 10DesirableThirskRefurbish School Sports Hall40.

HDC/ Sports
England/ Bedale
High School/
NYCC

Bedale High
School

5 to 10DesirableBedaleRefurbish School Sports Hall41.

Easingwold
School
(£1,414,000)/

Easingwold
School

1 to 5Secured
£2,500,000

EasingwoldFull size 3G pitch and sports
hall

42.

Football
foundation
(£307,000)/
Developer
contributions
(£650,000)/
Easingwold Town
AFC (£79,000)/
Friends of
Easingwold
School (£50,000)

67Infrastructure Delivery Plan March 2020 - Hambleton District Council
Page 55



Possible
funding source

Potential
delivery lead

Phase
(years)

PriorityAreaProjectIDS
Ref.

England Cricket
Board

Easingwold
Cricket Club

1 to 5Desirable
£30,000

EasingwoldNon-turf practice facilities for
cricket

43.

England Cricket
Board

Bedale Cricket
Club

1 to 5Desirable
£30,000

BedaleNon-turf practice facilities for
cricket

44.

England Cricket
Board

Northallerton
Cricket Club

1 to 5Desirable
£30,000

NorthallertonNon-turf practice facilities for
cricket

45.

Developer/ Sport
England

Easingwold
Town Council

1 to 10Secured
£15,000

EasingwoldRunning Track46.

Desirable
£65,000

HDC/ DeveloperHDC1 to 5Secured
£15,000

ThirskThirsk Sowerby Leisure Centre
extension, refurbishment and
upgrade of gym and building
plant

53.

Important
£3,000,000

HDC/ DeveloperHDC1 to 10Desirable
£200,000

BedaleBedale Leisure Centre
refurbishment and upgrade of
gym

54.

Table 13 Infrastructure Delivery Schedule - Flood Risk

Possible funding
source

Potential
delivery lead

Phase
(years)

PriorityAreaProjectIDS
Ref.

Environment
Agency/ Developer

Yorkshire
Wildlife Trust

1 to 10ImportantNorthallertonWiske Restoration Project -
habitat and water quality

47.

Environment
Agency/ Developer

Yorkshire
Dales Rivers
Trust

1 to 10ImportantBedaleMid Swale Tributaries Project -
Bedale Beck water quality

48.

Environment
Agency/ Developer

Brompton
Flood
Prevention
Group

1 to 10ImportantNorthallertonNatural Flood Management
Project - flood risk Brompton
Beck near Northallerton

49.

Environment
Agency/ Developer

North York
Moors National
Park Authority

1 to 10DesirableNorth York Moors
National Park

Ryevitalise Project - water
ecology, quality and natural
flood management

50.

Infrastructure Delivery Plan March 2020 - Hambleton District Council68
Page 56



Possible funding
source

Potential
delivery lead

Phase
(years)

PriorityAreaProjectIDS
Ref.

Environment
Agency/ Developer

Environment
Agency

1 to 10ImportantStokesleyStokesley flood alleviation -
Flood Diversion Channel

51.

Environment
Agency/ Developer

Environment
Agency/ Lead
Local Flood
Authority

1 to 10DesirableDistrict WideFuture flood management
schemes within Environment
Agency Medium Term Plan
(MTP)

52.

69Infrastructure Delivery Plan March 2020 - Hambleton District Council
Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Options for Prioritisation and Allocation of Monies                                   Annex 4                                                                      
 

Options for prioritisation are set out as follows: 
 
(1) Identify a percentage to be allocated to individual infrastructure 

providers: 
(2) Create a CIL working group which would identify 

schemes/infrastructure types which will receive funds on an annual 
basis 

(3) Allocating a percentage to be spent on local infrastructure and a 
percentage on strategic infrastructure. 

(4) Prioritising the key strategic infrastructure schemes for the Hambleton 
District in relation to the planned for growth of the District in terms of 
need, timing and relevance to the development plan and wider council 
published priorities and allocate CIL monies accordingly. 

 
Options for the allocation of CIL monies to priority schemes are considered to be as 
follows: 
 

(a) A percentage of the available CIL monies could be apportioned to all 
the priority infrastructure schemes reflecting the priorities identified. 

(b)  All of the available CIL monies could be allocated just to the priority 
schemes for a period until those schemes are delivered. 

(c)  All CIL monies are pooled to be retained and allocated based on the 
prioritised schemes. Cabinet would decide on the funding allocation. 
This could be reviewed during the year should problems in the delivery 
of particular schemes occur. 

 
 

 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 8 September 2020 
 
Subject: Council Plan 2019 to 2023 
 
Portfolio Holder: Leader 
 Councillor M S Robson 
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and Background     
 
1.1 This report seeks approval for the revised Council Plan 2019-2023 which 

demonstrates the Council’s vision, purpose and priorities updated for 2020 
onwards. 

 
1.2 The Council Plan was originally approved in September 2019 when a substantial 

review was undertaken in line with the newly appointed Council administration in 
May 2019.   

 
1.3 The report presents the revised Council Plan for agreement in 2020/21, where 

minor amendments have been made, which maintains the robust delivery of 
services for all customers who live, work and visit the district.  The full Council Plan 
is attached at Annex ‘A’. 

 
2.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
2.1 The Council is statutorily obliged to have an active Council Plan. 
 
3.0 Risk Assessment (always use the tables below to illustrate risks) 
 
3.1 There are no risks associated with this report. 
 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 There are no direct financial implications for this report. 
 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 There are no direct legal implications for this report. 
 
6.0 Equality/Diversity Issues 
 
6.1 There are no specific equality and diversity implications to this report.  Equality 

Impact assessments and consideration of diversity issues in relation to projects and 
services included in the Council Plan will be carried out by individual departments 
and reported when appropriate. 

 

Page 61

Agenda Item 6



7.0 Recommendation      
 
7.1 Cabinet is asked to recommend the revised Council Plan 2019-2023 to Council. 
 
 
Louise Branford-White 
Director of Finance and Commercial (S151 Officer) 
 
 
Background papers: None 
 
Author ref: LB-W 
 
Contact: Louise Branford-White 
  Director of Finance and Commercial (S152 Officer) 
  Tel: 01609 767024 

Page 62



??a place to grow

Our Plan
 2019 -23

a place togrow
Page 63



Welcome to our council plan, this is an extremely ambitious plan for the next three years, its purpose is to 
crystallise the Councils vision that Hambleton is a “place to grow”. These are challenging times for everyone, 
particularly as we begin to recover from the impact of COVID. 

In June 2020 the Government announced that as part of a devolution deal for York and North Yorkshire it would 
require the current two tier structure of local government in North Yorkshire to cease and for one or possibly 
two unitary Councils to cover the entire geography. Hambleton is currently fully engaged in that process and is 
committed to securing the best possible future for the residents and businesses of Hambleton.

Hambleton is a vibrant and prosperous district with an enviable quality of life. We will continue to focus on issues 
which are most important to our local communities and businesses. We have clear priorities that build on the 
successes of the past few years, in a resolute, incremental and thoughtful way. We are committed to delivering 
high quality services to our residents, at the lowest cost possible.

With an ever-changing funding environment for councils, we are determined to secure our own financial future 
and to safeguard the key services local people tell us are essential. To do this we are supplementing our existing 
prudent approach to financial management with a healthy appetite to investment in new development projects, 
and a new commercial strategy to generate additional income.

Over the past decade we have worked hard to keep our council tax low and we are proud to have the third 
lowest council tax in the country, and the lowest in North Yorkshire. The council tax we collect from you also 
contributes to the combined cost of North Yorkshire County Council, Town or Parish Councils, Police and 
Fire Services. Although we are the collecting authority, Hambleton District Council only keeps 6% of the total 
collected.

We have clear priorities for the next three years:

• driving economic vitality, 

• enhancing health and wellbeing,

• caring for the environment, 

• providing a special place to live,

and we are determined through hard work, collaboration with partners, leadership and influence to ensure that 
Hambleton is a place to grow.

2 a place to grow

Councillor Mark Robson
Leader of Hambleton 
District Council

Dr Justin Ives 
Chief Executive

Welcome

Page 64



??a place to grow 3a place to grow

About Hambleton  a place to grow
Located within the picturesque Vale of York, Hambleton is the 
second largest district in North Yorkshire. With many residents 
living in outlying villages, Hambleton is a largely rural district 
with a quarter of its population living in the five historic 
market towns of Bedale, Easingwold, Northallerton, Stokesley 
and Thirsk.

The local area is well known for its stunning landscape, with 
the Hambleton Hills, between Helmsley and Sutton Bank, and 
the Howardian Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 
Population levels have risen steadily over the past decade as 
more people choose to make the district their home. People 
are healthier and live longer than the national average and 
levels of deprivation, though present, are generally low.

Local shopping, recreation and sports facilities are very good 
and there is a strong sense of community. Added to this, 
exceptional business and transport links mean the district is 
a popular location for new and existing businesses of many 
types, from local enterprises to global companies. Hambleton 
is a place to grow.

The district council
Hambleton District Council provides high-quality services for local people, businesses and visitors. In common 
with other district councils, these include many essential day-to-day services as well as those contributing to a 
good quality of life for residents and a pleasant environment:

• refuse and recycling collection • street cleaning • supporting businesses

• local planning • car parking • market town investment

• environmental health • housing • sports and leisure services

• economic development • housing benefits

The council operates a cabinet structure with 28 elected councillors representing 17 wards. Elections are held 
every four years. Cabinet comprises the Leader, Deputy Leader (who leads on economic development and 
finance) and portfolio holders for the key areas of leisure; environmental health, waste and recycling; governance 
and planning.

Introduction

C
on

ta
in

s 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 d

at
a 

©
 C

ro
w

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 d

at
ab

as
e 

rig
ht

 2
01

5

EasingwoldEasingwold

ThirskThirsk

NorthallertonNorthallerton

BedaleBedale

StokesleyStokesley

Page 65



4 a place to grow

We deliver our purpose in three ways:

Community Leadership
Community leadership is at the core of our purpose. Our 28 councillors 
make a unique contribution as Community Leaders, engaging directly 
with their communities in Hambleton’s 17 wards. Their local knowledge, 
combined with other insights gained from our Customer Services, and directly 
from residents and businesses, is helping us become more responsive to local 
need and to reconfigure and evolve our services accordingly.

Community leadership supports us to start, stop or alter what we are doing 
and to deliver ‘more for less’. It encourages us to be locally responsive and to 
develop new forms of service delivery and accountability in partnership with 
residents and others.

Place Shaping
Place shaping is an essential part of what we do. Hambleton’s rural setting 
with our vibrant market towns, excellent transport links and strong visitor 
offer all contribute to an already established sense of place. Building on this 
strong identity includes recognising and promoting what is distinctive about 
Hambleton.

Sustainability, innovation and customer service are at the heart of our 
approach and working with partners we use our influence and shared 
resources to promote the general well-being of Hambleton, its villages and 
market towns. For a district of our size, we have an ambitious and already 
well-established portfolio of place shaping development projects.

Delivering Services
We pride ourselves on delivering high-quality services at the lowest cost 
possible. We are committed to ensuring our services reflect the needs of our 
different communities and that they are responsive and easily accessed.

A priority across all our services is to protect the district’s heritage and high 
quality environment, with investment in services that work for local people 
today as well as planning for the future.

Hambleton District Council exists to serve its communities and to ensure Hambleton 
continues to be an attractive and vibrant place to live, work, visit and invest. 

Our Purpose

Page 66



5a place to grow

Our Vision, Values and Priorities
O

pe
n 

  •
   

Re
sp

onsib
le   •

   F
air   -   O

ur Values   -   Customer focused   •   Respectful

a 
p

la
ce

 t
o

 gr
ow

Prio
rities

Enhancing 
Health and 
WellbeingDriving 

Economic 
Vitality

Caring 
for the 

Environment

Providing a 
Special Place 

to Live

O
U

R
 V

IS
IO

N

Foundations

Communications

Customers People

Governance

Page 67



grow

2019/20 Progress

progress
The roundabouts 

and access roads are 
complete

progress
Improved car parks are 

almost complete. Electric 
vehicle charging points in 
place with more to come

progress
Green light given for 

£3.8 million 
improvements

progress
Our funding 

applications have 
been agreed

progress
Former hospital in 

the process of being 
transferred to Herriot 

Hospice

progress
A bid for funding 

has been 
successful

project
North Northallerton 

Bridge and Road 

project
Car Parks and Electric 

Charging Points

project
Thirsk and Sowerby 

Leisure Centre

project
Vibrant Market Towns

project
Lambert Hospitalproject

Northallerton Sports 
Village

progress
We have launched an online reporting system 
and installed new cameras. We are supporting 
community litter picking groups in many areas

progress
Our Local Plan has now been 

submitted to the Planning 
Inspectorate

progress
This review has been 
completed and a new 

Chief Planning Officer has 
joined the council

project
Fly-tipping and 

Littering Improvements

project
Local 
Plan 

project
“Best in Class” 

Planning Service

progress
Phase One of Treadmills is under 

construction. We have funding for a 
digital hub and connections project

progress
Improved 

infrastructure is on 
its way

progress
We have completed 

the grass pitches 
and fitness trail

progress
The gym and studio have 

been refurbished at 
Stokesley Leisure Centre.
We have started work on 

the 3G pitch in Easingwold

progress
We helped deliver the very 

successful Tour de Yorkshire and the 
UCI Cycling World Championship

progress
We have secured the site 

and the new Crematorium 
scheme has council approval

project
Central Northallerton 

Redevelopment

project
Dalton Utilities 
Improvement

project
Sowerby 

Sports Village

project
Community 

Leisure Facilities 
Improvement

project
Events and Legacy 

Programme

project
Crematorium 

Project

6 a place to grow Page 68



7a place to grow

Our values underpin everything we do: how we work, how we set our priorities, 
how we do things, how we hold ourselves accountable. The people of Hambleton 
demand high standards from us and we demand them of ourselves. 

Open
We are honest and transparent in what we do and how we work. 
We act with integrity. We aim to provide timely and accurate 
information. We welcome change and have a healthy attitude to 
risk.

Responsible
We place high regard on being accountable for our actions both 
as individuals and as an organisation. We are financially prudent. 
We measure our performance.

Customer Focused
We put Hambleton residents, businesses and visitors at the heart 
of how we work. We set ourselves high standards and we are 
committed to being responsive and effective. 

Fair
We strive to be fair to all on an equal basis. We work as a council 
and value everyone’s contribution.

Respectful
We are inclusive, listen and consider others. We value everyone. 

Our Values

grow
Page 69



8 a place to grow

Hambleton  a place to grow
Our four key priorities will ensure Hambleton continues to offer an enviable quality 
of life now and for future generations. 

Our Priorities

Driving Economic Vitality

Caring for the Environment

Enhancing Health and Wellbeing

Providing a Special Place to Live

Page 70



9a place to grow

We want Hambleton to continue to attract and keep, good and stable 
employers, encourage new businesses and generate commercial 
opportunities. We will build on our excellent reputation as an easy 
place to do business through our responsive business support service. 
Providing advice on grants, premises, funding and planning. We will 
promote opportunities for companies to network and forge links with other 
businesses.

During 2020/21 we aim to:
• Facilitate 28 young people into local small businesses through 

apprenticeships and the graduate scheme
• Support £1m of new business investment in Hambleton
• Increase footfall across Hambletons market towns by 5% 
• Achieve a level of business rate collection of 97% 
• Achieve a level of council tax collection of 95% 
• Increase the number of major planning applications determined within 13 

weeks, or as agreed with the applicant, to 80%
• Increase the number of minor planning applications determined within 8 

weeks, or as agreed with the applicant, to 85%

Where businesses grow their reach, from local to global

Where creativity grows 

Where ideas grow into reality 

Where ambitions grow 

Where market towns grow and flourish

Our Priorities

Driving 
Economic 
Vitality

KEY PROJECTS

Northallerton bridge and road development

Central Northallerton redevelopment

Car park improvement scheme

Dalton utilities improvement 

Page 71



10 a place to grow

We are proud to run and support high-quality leisure facilities, leisure 
and cultural events and sporting activities. With a growing population in 
Hambleton and an increasing number of visitors, participation in physical 
activity remains a priority for us. Our community grant programme 
encourages a wide range of neighbourhood activities while the council’s 
ZEST leisure centres offer well-resourced health and fitness facilities and 
inclusive activity programmes, with state-of-the-art equipment and seasonal 
activity programmes.

During 2020/21 we aim to:
• Achieve health and fitness membership base of 3,322
• Achieve ‘Learn2 Swim’ membership base of 2,350
• Successfully allocate 100% (£248,910) of community grants
• Complete 100% of high/medium risk food premises inspections
• Complete 100% (16) of private water supply risk assessments

Where communities grow and flourish

Where people grow ideas 

Where families grow 

Where creativity grows

Our Priorities

Enhancing 
Health and 
Wellbeing

KEY PROJECTS

Northallerton Sports Village

Sowerby Sports Village

Thirsk & Sowerby Leisure Centre improvements

Community Leisure facilities improvements - Bedale, 
Easingwold and Stokesley

Events and legacy programme

Page 72



11a place to grow

Our Priorities

Caring 
for the 

Environment

The environment is a top priority for us and our residents and we are 
working on ways to reduce the impact of climate change. We encourage 
sustainability and work hard to reduce our own environmental impact.  
We are rigorous in our efforts to maintain high-quality waste and 
recycling collections. We will continue to support communities with their 
neighbourhood litter picks and take enforcement action on fly tipping and 
littering. We will promote renewable energy and install electric charging 
points. By installing improved energy efficient lighting, we will continue to 
improve our energy efficiency and reduce our CO2 emissions.

Where communities grow and flourish

Where market towns grow and flourish

Where sense of place grows

KEY PROJECTS

Crematorium project

Renewable energy

Electric charging points

Fly tipping & littering improvements

During 2020/21 we aim to:
• Maintain a recycling rate of 50%
• Monitor the effectiveness of the fly tipping and littering enforcement policy
• Facilitate 52 community litter picks
• Ensure that 20 electric vehicle charging points are provided within the district.

Page 73



12 a place to grow

Our Priorities

Providing a 
Special Place 

to Live

Hambleton is growing and we are working hard to ensure we have high 
quality housing available throughout the district. Across our five market 
towns and outlying villages, we are committed to ensuring a minimum 
five year supply of deliverable housing sites. Local people’s views have 
helped shape the new Hambleton Local Plan and will continue to be at 
the heart of how communities develop. We want Hambleton to continue 
to be an attractive, prosperous and safe place to live. We are committed 
to supporting people to lead independent lives and ensuring housing is 
available for all. We will provide practical support to residents to prevent 
homelessness, including financial support.

Where people grow ideas 

Where families grow 

Where communities grow and flourish

Where market towns grow and flourish

Where creativity grows

Where sense of place grows

KEY PROJECTS

Local plan

Best in class planning service

Lambert Hospital community development

Vibrant market towns

During 2020/21 we aim to:
• Maintain each year a minimum five year supply of deliverable housing sites
• Adopt the new Local Plan 
• Deliver an additional 315 new homes
• Ensure 100% of homelessness decisions are made on time
• Ensure a total of 85% of funds allocated for disabled facilities applications is spent
• Process new housing benefit claims within 20 days in line with North Yorkshire 

authorities
• Process new council tax claims within 20 days in line with North Yorkshire 

authorities
• Process housing benefit changes in circumstance within five days in line with 

North Yorkshire authorities
• Process council tax changes in circumstance within five days in line with 

North Yorkshire authorities.

Page 74



13a place to grow

Our Finances

Hambleton has an impressive track record of sound financial management.

We create and support new opportunities and new income streams to ensure the on-going affordability of council 
services. We identify new ways to save, or make money. 
An example of this is the ambitious crematorium project which aims to provide an essential service to the local area 
along with the development of the south side of the former prison site – Treadmills, where both schemes will generate 
income for future service delivery.

The illustration shows the position of the council’s reserves at the beginning of the financial year in April 2020 and 
does not include the significant implication that the Covid-19 pandemic will have in the future.

 

The investment in ICT and our assets along with the reduction in Government funding accounts for the decrease in 
reserves to 2024/25 but at this stage in September 2020 does not take account of the reduction in reserves required 
to support the effects of loss in income incurred and costs as a result of the coronavirus.  
It is too soon to tell the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and this further impact will be reported in Autumn 2020.

The Council continues to drive forward with new ideas and initiatives to continue to provide income which will allow 
us to support our priorities over the longer term to demonstrate that we are financially sustainable. 

Where communities grow and flourish

Where businesses grow their reach, from local to global

Where creativity grows
Where ideas grow into reality 

Where ambitions grow 

Where market towns grow and flourish

£16,000,000

Reserves of the Council

£14,000,000

£12,000,000

£10,000,000

£8,000,000

£6,000,000

£4,000,000

£2,000,000

£0 2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

2026/27

2027/28

2028/29

2029/30

Page 75



14 a place to grow

Our Services

• Building Control
• Business and Economy
• Communications
• Conservation
• �Development Management
• �Economic Development
• �Graduate Programme

• �GIS (Geographic Information Systems)
• Housing
• Local Land Charges
• �Market Town Investment
• Planning Policy
• Street Naming and Numbering

Economy and Planning:

• Audit Services
• Business Rates
• Business Support
• Commercialisation and Programme Management
• �Customer Services
• Finance
• Housing Benefits 

• �ICT
• Payroll
• Performance and Risk Management
• Reprographics
• Taxation and Recovery
• Transparency

Finance and Commercial:

• Business Continuity
• Emergency Planning
• Environmental Health
• Food Hygiene
• Health and Safety

• Household Waste
• Pest and Pollution Control
• Recycling
• Street Scene
• Environmental Health (Water Supply)

Environment:

• �CCTV
• �Community Leisure
• �Community Partnerships
• �Community Safety
• �Design and Maintenance 
• �Events and Safeguarding

• �Facilities Management
• Grants and External Funding
• �Leisure Centres
• Parking
• �Public Health
• �Sports and Art Development

Leisure and Communities:

• �Democratic Services
• �Electoral Services
• �Human Resources
• �Information Governance

• �Legal Services
• �Licensing
• �Procurement

Law and Governance:

Page 76



a place togrow
Page 77



© Communications Unit HDC 2020

This information is available in alternative formats and languages

Civic Centre, Stone Cross, Rotary Way, Northallerton, North Yorkshire DL6 2UU 

01609 779977

a place togrow

Page 78



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 8 September 2020 
 
Subject: Bedale – Leisure Improvements 
 
Portfolio Holder: Leisure  
 Councillor Mrs B S Fortune  
  
Wards Affected: Bedale Ward 
 

 
1.0 Purpose and Background     
 
1.1 Within the Council Plan, 2019-23, community leisure facility improvements at 

Bedale are identified as a key project.  This project is part of the Council’s strategy 
to invest in leisure facilities across the district.  This report seeks approval for 
delivery of a scheme of improvements at Bedale Leisure Centre. 

 
1.2 The gym and fitness class offer is a major generator of income (£198,000 in 

2019/20), representing 41% of the total income at the centre.  There is no 
opportunity to expand the gym or fitness class studio externally due to land not 
being available.  Therefore the proposal during 2020/21 is to refresh and refurbish 
the health & fitness areas including the replacement of equipment (or stations) and 
maximising the space available.  This would provide a 30 station gym and space for 
20 indoor cycling bikes as well as an up to date experience in line with the other 
Hambleton leisure centres.  At present there are 25 stations. 

 
1.3 The proposed improvements will also enhance the customer journey by refreshing 

and refurbishing the reception and foyer area and making it function more 
efficiently.  The aim is to refurbish the reception area, improve the circulation space 
and maximise the use of the foyer space to meet its full potential. 

 
1.4 Other ancillary building improvements will also take place in order to upgrade the 

facility. 
 
1.5 Delivering these improvements will provide the following benefits: 
 

• An improved offer and increased customer satisfaction with the service and    
therefore customer retention rates; 

• An enhanced customer journey; 
• Opportunities for revenue growth and 
• Enable personal health tracking and support the delivery of health intervention 

programmes such as the Take that Step wellbeing scheme. 
  

Page 79

Agenda Item 7



2.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
2.1 Whilst this project primarily impacts upon the Council’s ‘Enhancing Health and 

Wellbeing’ priority, by providing an improved community facility it also enhances the 
vibrancy of Bedale and the attractiveness of the area to residents and visitors, 
‘Providing a Special Place to Live’ and helping to ‘Drive Economic Vitality’.  The 
Council plays a major role in improving public health and wellbeing, particularly in 
terms of prevention, and the continued improvement of this facility will help to tackle 
the physical and mental activity needs of the local population. 

 
3.0 Risk Assessment 
  
3.1 There are no significant risks associated with the recommendations. 
 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 The cost to deliver the improvement and associated works is estimated to be 

£314,000.  Costs at this time are approximate and a small contingency has been 
included.  Whilst costs will be kept to a minimum, flexibility will be needed between 
cost headings and it is proposed that this flexibility is delegated to the Director of 
Leisure and Communities to ensure delivery of the full project within budget. 

 
4.2 In order to undertake some of the improvements there will be a need for some short 

term closures in specific parts of the building, these closures will be managed and 
kept to a minimum.  The works will be phased in order to offer as close to a full 
normal service as possible. 

 
4.3 The capital costs are identified within the table below and will be allocated from the 

Community Infrastructure Levy.  It is anticipated that the revenue impact will be 
positive, although marginal. 

 

Element Cost 

Equipment  £208,000 

Building works £86,000 

Ancillary costs £8,900 

Contingency £11,100 

TOTAL £314,000 

  
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 
 
6.0 Equality/Diversity Issues 
 
6.1 Equality and diversity issues have been considered however there are no major 

issues associated with this report.  All facility and equipment improvements will look 
to improve accessibility to all sections of the community.  Assurance is given that 
any approved development meets the Council’s obligations with the Public Sector 
Equality Duty. 

 

Page 80



7.0 Health and Safety Issues 
 
7.1 Full risk assessments and method statements will be obtained from providers of 

equipment and contractors who carry out the capital works. 
 
8.0 Recommendations     
 
8.1 That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council: 
  

a) the planned approach to investment at Bedale Leisure Centre for sports and 
physical activity improvements highlighted within this report; 

 
b)  that £314,000 is allocated from the Community Infrastructure Levy to fund the 

improvements, and 
 
c)  flexibility to deliver the elements of the project within budget is delegated to 

the Director of Leisure and Communities as highlighted within section 4.0 of 
the report. 

 
Steven Lister 
Director of Leisure and Communities 
 
 
Background papers: None 
 
Author ref: CW 
 
Contact: Colin Winfield 
  Business Development Service Manager - Leisure 
  01609 767160 
 

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
 
Date: 8 September 2020 
 
Subject: Commercial Investment strategy 
 
Portfolio Holder: Economic Development and Finance 
 Councillor P R Wilkinson  
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 

 
 
1.0 Purpose and Background     
 
1.1 It is proposed that the Commercial Investment Strategy is suspended at the current 

time due to the  

 increase in Publics Works Loan Board interest rates on borrowing in October 
2019 resulting in the income to be generated from commercial investments 
being marginal;  

 consultation paper from HM Treasury on ‘Public Works Loan Board: future 
lending terms’ in March 2020 where it is clearly implies the Treasury will no 
longer allow local authorities to borrow money from the Public Works Loan 
Board to purchase commercial property if the aim is solely to generate an 
income stream 

 current Covid-19 environment where receipt of rental income is uncertain 
 
1.2 In September 2019 the Council approved the Commercial Investment Strategy 

where the proposal was to acquire a commercial investment property portfolio to 
potentially generate an income stream to  contribute to the Financial Strategy and, 
therefore, to the delivery of public services and projects to improve the community, 
economic and environmental wellbeing of the District. 
 

1.3 The commercial investment property portfolio was explained to Members to not be 
without risks and to ensure a careful and managed approach was adopted.  The 
Council therefore approved the Investment Strategy which set out parameters within 
which the Council would make such commercial property purchases. 
 

1.4 External property investment advisers were appointed to advise on the Investment 
Strategy and also identify potential commercial property acquisitions to secure 
commercial income to underpin the delivery of the Council’s priorities across all 
departments. 
 

1.5 However, it is now proposed to suspend the Commercial Investment strategy in light 
of HM Treasury imposing two changes which increased Public Works Loan Board 
borrowing rates in 2019/20 without any prior warning.  Public Works Loan Board 
borrowing rates are the interest rates set by Government specifically for local 
authorities which are lower than gilt yields on which the interest rates are based. 

Page 83

Agenda Item 8



1.6 The first change, on 9 October 2019, added an additional 1% margin (100 basis 
points) over gilts to all Public Works Loan Board rates.  This resulted in increased 
costs when borrowing to support the capital programme schemes as well as the 
commercial investment property portfolio.   
 

1.7 The second change was within the consultation for local authorities on possibly 
further amending Public Works Loan Board interest rates.  This was released in 
March 2020 by HM Treasury with the end date being 31 July 2020.  From the 
consultation paper it is clear that the Treasury will no longer allow local authorities 
to borrow money from the PWLB to purchase commercial property if the aim is 
solely to generate an income stream. 

 
1.8 In addition, the Covid-19 pandemic has added to the volatility of generating an 

income stream form commercial investment property due to the uncertainty that 
rental income is paid and organisation continue to struggle to meet rental payments. 

 
1.9 Therefore, in these circumstance it is not financial viable to continue with the 

Commercial Investment Strategy at the current time and it is recommended that it is 
suspended. 
 

1.10 This position will be closely monitored and if the Governments view changes on its 
approach to local government commercial investment, the PWLB interest rates are 
favourable to this type of investment and the commercial property market is less 
uncertain then further consideration will be given to proceeding.  

 
2.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
2.1 The report details the volatility of the commercial property market and therefore by 

not  proceeding with the commercial investment strategy at this time will ensure that 
the Council’s reserves can be used to support projects, schemes and service areas 
of the Council rather than being used to support rental income losses that may 
occur. 

 
3.0 Risk Assessment 
 
 There are no risks associated with the report. 
 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 The £30m commercial investment property portfolio included in the capital 

programme at £30m will be removed and reported to Cabinet at quarter 2 along 
with the change in the prudential indicators including the Capital Financing 
Requirement (which is an estimate of the amount that the Council needs to borrow 
to support capital expenditure) and also the authorised borrowing limit.  The change 
in the authorised borrowing limit requires Council approval which will be obtained in 
December 2020 in line with quarter 2 reporting. 

 
  

Page 84



4.2 The estimated income to be generated in 2020/21 from the commercial investment 
property portfolio at £149,340 will be removed from the budget at quarter 2 where 
additional income or reduced expenditure will occur within the total budget to cover 
this overspend during the year.  The position will be closely monitored during the 
year. 

 
4.3 The 10 Year Financial strategy includes the Income generating Revenue Stream in 

which the income from the commercial investment property portfolio contributed 
along with other projects across the Council.  The 10 Year financial strategy is 
currently being reviewed in light of Covid-19 and the revised 10 year Financial 
Strategy will be brought to Cabinet for approval in autumn. 

  
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 There are no legal implications associated with the report. 
 
6.0 Equalities and Diversity Issues 
 
6.1 There are no equalities and diversity Issues associated with the report. 
 
7.0 Recommendation      
 
7.1 That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council that:  
 

(1) the Commercial Investment strategy is suspended; and 
 
(2) £30m commercial investment property portfolio is removed from the Capital 

programme and the Authorised Borrowing Limit and Prudential Indicators are 
revised at paragraph 4.1 of the report. 

 
 
   
 
Louise Branford-White 
Director of Finance and Commercial (s151 officer) 
 
 
Background papers: Commercial property investment portfolio 

Public Works Loan Board: future lending terms consultation 
    
Author ref:  LBW 
 
Contact: Louise Branford-White – Director of Finance and Commercial 

(S151 Officer) 
    Direct Line: 01609 767024 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 87

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 91

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 2020/21 Q1 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Report
	Annex A 2020/21 Q1 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Report
	Annex B 2020/21 Q1 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Report
	Annex CD 2020/21 Q1 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Report
	Annex E 2020/21 Q1 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management Report
	Annex F 2020/21 Qtr 1 Capital Monitoring and Treasury Management

	4 2020/21 Q1 Revenue Monitoring Report
	5 CIL Funding Priorities
	Annex 1 for CIL Funding Priorities
	Annex 2 for CIL Funding Priorities
	Annex 3 Infrastructure Delivery Schedule
	Annex 3 Infrastructure Delivery Plan and Schedule 65
	Annex 3 Infrastructure Delivery Plan and Schedule 66
	Annex 3 Infrastructure Delivery Plan and Schedule 67
	Annex 3 Infrastructure Delivery Plan and Schedule 68
	Annex 3 Infrastructure Delivery Plan and Schedule 69
	Annex 3 Infrastructure Delivery Plan and Schedule 70
	Annex 3 Infrastructure Delivery Plan and Schedule 71

	Annex 4 for CIL Funding Priorities

	6 Council Plan 20120– 2024
	Council Plan 2019 to 2023 - Annex

	7 Bedale Leisure Improvements
	8 Commercial Investment Strategy
	10 Crematorium Development
	Annex - Crematorium Development




